
City of Capitola Agenda

Mayor: Ed Bottorff
Vice Mayor: Stephanie Harlan
Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Dennis Norton
Michael Termini

Treasurer: Christine McBroom

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, APRIL 28, 2016

7:00 PM

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

City of Capitola                                Page 1                       Updated 4/22/2016 2:34 PM

CLOSED SESSION - 6:15 PM  
  CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting.

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Govt. Code §54956.9)
(Two Cases)

1. Theresa Kloepfer, GAL for Kaitlin Kloepfer vs. the City of Capitola et al. 
[Santa Cruz County Superior Court, Case No. CV179725]

2. Tuka Gafair vs. the City of Capitola et al.
[Santa Cruz County Superior Court, Case No. 16CV00902]

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – PENDING LITIGATION 
(Govt. Code §54956.9(a))

People of the State of CA, City of Capitola v. Tomas M. D’Angelo and 
Rosa Z. D’Angelo, 
[Santa Cruz Superior Court, Case No. 15CV00384]



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 28, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 2 Updated 4/22/2016 2:34 PM

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7:00 PM
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Dennis Norton, Stephanie Harlan, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini and 
Mayor Ed Bottorff

2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time.

6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration.

7. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS

8. CONSENT CALENDAR
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the April 14, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 28, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 3 Updated 4/22/2016 2:34 PM

B. Approval of City Check Registers dated March 4, March 11, March 18 and March 25 
2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Check Register Reports.

C. Set Public Hearing Date to Consider an Appeal of the Planning Commission's 
Decision to Approve the Monterey Avenue Skate Park 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Set a hearing date of June 23, 2016.

D. Consider an Amendment to Mid-Management Memorandum of Understanding 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider Approval of Amendment to the Mid-
Management Employees Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in order to change 
the Fair Labor Standards Act (FSLA) status of the Environmental Projects Manager 
and Building Official to exempt effective April 1, 2016.

E. Consider a Resolution Authorizing Capitola's Participation in the CalRecycle 
Payment Program 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution.

F. Approve a Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget Amendment to Purchase Two Unmarked 
Police Vehicles 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Amend the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 State Supplemental 
Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF) Budget to increase expenditures by 
$40,020.

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of 
each item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) 
Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) 
Decision.

A. Appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for a 
Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve 
the project as conditioned.

B. Community Choice Energy Status Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and authorize the City Manager to 
designate staff to participate in the upcoming special study sessions and ad-hoc 
subcommittee deliberations.

C. Consider a Resolution for Widening Kennedy Drive to Allow Four Hour Parking 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Public Works Department to issue an 
encroachment permit for shoulder widening on Kennedy Drive and approve a 
Resolution designating on-street parking as four-hour parking along Kennedy Drive 
between Chittenden Lane and Rosedale Avenue.

10. ADJOURNMENT
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 28, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 4 Updated 4/22/2016 2:34 PM

Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at 
the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also 
available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? 
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime.

http://www.cityofcapitola.org
http://www.cityofcapitola.org


CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the April 14, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the subject 
meetings.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft April 14, 2016, City Council Minutes

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.A

Packet Pg. 5



City of Capitola                                Page 1                       Updated 4/15/2016 9:30 AM

DRAFT CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING ACTION MINUTES

THURSDAY, APRIL 14, 2016 
7:00 PM

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Councilmember Dennis Norton: Present, Mayor Ed Bottorff: Present, Council Member 
Jacques Bertrand: Present, Vice Mayor Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member 
Michael Termini: Present.

City Treasurer Christine McBroom was absent.

2. PRESENTATIONS

A. Introduction of Sergeant Mark Gonzalez and Senior Officer Sara Ryan 

Introductions provided.

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS

City Clerk Sneddon stated that two additional materials were received regarding Item 9.B.

• an appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for a 

Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street.

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

None provided.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Gayle Ortiz, local resident, stated that there are two “Vision Capitola” workshops scheduled
for April 20th and April 27th; Vision Capitola is a grassroots, volunteer effort to learn what 
Capitolan’s value most about their community and what they would like to see happen in 
the next 5 to 15 years.

6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS

Council Member Bertrand stated that he and Mayor Bottorff were provided a tour of Lucile 
Packard Children's Hospital Stanford. In addition, he attended a United Way Youth 
Violence Prevention meeting.

Council Member Harlan stated that in preparation for the 2016 Begonia Festival there 
will be a display and sale of blooming begonia plants on Saturday, April 16th, at 602 

Capitola Avenue.

Mayor Bottorff stated that this evening Council Member Termini and he attended an
Operation Surf special dinner hosted by Paradise Beach Grille Restaurant; this program 
is for wounded soldiers who participated in a nonprofit program that provides surfing 
lessons to active military amputees.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 A
p

ri
l 1

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

13
00

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 2 Updated 4/15/2016 9:30 AM

City Manager Goldstein stated that the Capitola Mall has been sold to Merlone Geier 
Partners. In addition, he complimented the Police Department for apprehending a bank 
robber who is being accused of robbing four banks in the past four weeks.

Public Works Director Jesberg provided an update regarding various Capital Improvement 
Program projects.

7. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS

City Manager Goldstein stated on April 15th he will be part of an interview panel for the 
Director of Santa Cruz Public Libraries position. He stated that the City’s Library Advisory 
Committee met on April 12th and approved retaining a Library Construction Project Manager 
if the June Ballot Measure S is approved by the voters.

8. CONSENT CALENDAR

RESULT: ADOPTED ITEMS 8.A., 8.B., 8.C., 8.D. AND 8.E. [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Dennis Norton, Councilmember
SECONDER: Stephanie Harlan, Vice Mayor
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

A. Consider the March 24, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Special Meetings of March 17 
and March 31, 2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes.

C. Award Construction Contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for the Rosedale 
Area Paving Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Award a contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for 
the Rosedale Area Paving Project with a bid in the amount of $228,676.50 for 
construction of the Rosedale Avenue Paving Project, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to add a section of Plum Street from Rosedale Avenue to the Brookvale 
Terrace Mobile Home Park into the project at an estimated cost of $12,000.

D. Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton and Esplanade Improvement 
Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton Avenue and Esplanade 
Intersection Improvements in the amount of $44,645 for the addition of sidewalk 
adjacent the David Lyng Real Estate office at the corner of Stockton Avenue and 
Capitola Avenue; and

2. Authorize and budget amendment receiving unanticipated revenue in the amount of 
$10,000 from David Lyng for this project; and

3. Authorize the transfer of $34,645 within the Capital Improvement Fund to cover the 
balance of this change order with funding coming from the Village Sidewalk 
Cooperative Project funding bank.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 A
p

ri
l 1

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

13
00

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 3 Updated 4/15/2016 9:30 AM

E. Professional Services Agreement with Ben Noble: Urban and Regional Planning for 
the Zoning Code Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement 
with Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning in the amount of $26,110 for 
completion of the Zoning Code Update.  

Council Member Bertrand stated that the state’s recycling industry (CalRecyle) is 

going to lead out in the recycling of sharps and medications; these items are also 

accepted at the following Capitola locations:

• Capitola Police Department

• CVS Pharmacies on 41st Avenue and Bay Avenue

• Lauden Pharmacy in Capitola

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Accept Report on the Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Wharf Resiliency 
Study (Study) and Provide Direction to Staff 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Study and provide direction to staff on a 10-
year plan of improvements for the Capitola Wharf.

Brad Porter, Moffatt and Nichol, provided a report regarding the assessment of the 
Capitola Wharf.

RESULT: CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTED THE STUDY PROVIDED BY MOFFATT 
AND NICHOL AND PROVIDED DIRECTION TO STAFF FOR A 10-
YEAR PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE CAPITOLA WHARF; 
APPROVE THE $6,300 EXPENDITURE TO COMPLETE THE 
WIDENING ANALYSIS AS AN ADDENDUM TO THE MOFFATT AND 
NICHOL REPORT; AND DIRECTED STAFF TO APPLY FOR A 
MATCHING GRANT [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Dennis Norton, Council Member  
SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member  
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

B. Appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for a 
Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve 
the project as conditioned.

David Aaron, applicant, provided information on the proposed garage addition for his
single-family home located at 4980 Garnet Street.

Jan Caldarella, appellant, provided reasoning for appealing this item.

Bret Gresley, 5010 Garnet Street, stated that he supports the appeal.

Motion by Council Member Termini, second by Council Member Harlan, to uphold 
the Planning Commission’s decision to approve the project as conditioned. After 
discussion, the motion and second were withdrawn.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 A
p

ri
l 1

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

13
00

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 4 Updated 4/15/2016 9:30 AM

RESULT: NO ACTION TAKEN REGARDING UPHOLDING THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION’S DECISION TO APPROVE A DESIGN PERMIT AND 
VARIANCE FOR A GARAGE ADDITION FOR A SINGLE-FAMILY 
HOME LOCATED AT 4980 GARNET STREET; AND TO CONTINUE 
THIS ITEM WHEN THE APPLICANT’S FINAL PLANS ARE 
RECEIVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Michael Termini, Council Member
SECONDER: Stephanie Harlan, Vice Mayor
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

C. Consider a Wharf House Lease Extension 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Give staff direction on the terms of the Wharf House 
Lease Extension and whether to prepare a competitive proposal process for the 
facility.

Willie Case, Wharf House restaurant owner, does not want a bidding process for the 
restaurant; he requested a lease extension.

RESULT: DIRECTED STAFF TO WORK WITH THE CITY ATTORNEY TO 
EXTEND THE LEASE WITH THE LESSEE AND TO INCLUDE 
LANGUAGE THAT STATES IT IS THE INTENTION OF THE CITY 
TO PERFORM SIGNIFICANT WORK ON THE WHARF DURING 
THE TERM OF THE LEASE WHICH MAY IMPACT THE LESSEE’S 
ABILITY TO CONDUCT BUSINESS [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Michael Termini, Council Member
SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member

AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

10. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was closed at 9:00 p.m.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 A
p

ri
l 1

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

13
00

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers dated March 4, March 11, March 18 and March 
25 2016 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Check Register Reports.

BACKGROUND: Check Registers are attached for:

Account: City Main
Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Check/EFT Count Amount

03/04/16 82944 83018 75 $86,405.61
03/11/16 83019 83055 39 $149,436.28
03/18/16 83056 83109 56 $139,046.19
03/25/16 83110 83199 96 $243,380.65

The check register of February 26, 2016, ended with check #82943.  

Account: Payroll
Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Check/EFT Count Amount

03/04/16 4754 4761 91 $159,142.73
03/18/16 4763 4773 98 $146,532.92

Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000.00 and a brief description of the expenditure:

Check Issued to Dept Description Amount
82955 Atchison Barisone & Condotti CM January general city attorney services $24,318.07
82981 PG&E PW Monthly gas and electricity $15,107.76

83038 Placeworks CDD Climate action plan, draft zoning code 
update, public review $28,105.00

eft236 IRS FN Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 2/27/16 $25,421.86
eft239 CalPERS Member Services FN PERS contributions PPE 2/27/16 $46,322.24
83064 Atchison Barisone & Condotti CM February general city attorney services $22,241.32
83074 Earthworks PW Rispin/Peery park ADA phase I $17,555.40

83093 Rogers Anderson Malody & Scott FN FY14/15 audit services, addendum to 
annual progress report $12,900.00

83095 SCC Department of Public Works PW Household hazardous waste program $18,472.00
83189 Tyler Technologies CM New World annual software contract $17,910.00
eft244 CalPERS Health Insurance FN April health insurance $52,314.38
eft246 IRS FN Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 3/12/16 $25,434.77

8.B

Packet Pg. 10



Approval of City Check Registers 
April 28, 2016

eft248 CalPERS Member Services FN PERS contributions PPE 3/12/16 $45,266.44

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. City Check Register 03/04/2016
2. Cith Check Register 03/11/2016
3. City Check Register 03/18/2016
4. City Check Register 03/25/2016

Report Prepared By:  Maura Herlihy
Account Technician

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.B

Packet Pg. 11



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/0
4/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
h

 C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
1/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
h

 C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
1/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
h

 C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
1/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
h

 C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
1/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.2

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
h

 C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
1/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/1
8/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



8.B.4

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
03

/2
5/

20
16

  (
12

84
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Set Public Hearing Date to Consider an Appeal of the Planning Commission's 
Decision to Approve the Monterey Avenue Skate Park 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Set a hearing date of June 23, 2016.

BACKGROUND: On March 31 2016, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve 
the proposed Monterey Avenue Skate Park. The Planning Commission approval included 
shifting the location of the skate park closer to the Monterey Park parking lot as described in 
Alternative 1 of the Environmental Impact Report and several additional conditions of approval. 
Two separate appeals of the Planning Commission decision were filed prior to the appeal 
deadline (Attachments 1 and 2). 

DISCUSSION: In accordance with Municipal Code Section 2.52.030, staff can either schedule 
an appeal hearing for the next City Council meeting or shall, at the next City Council meeting, 
request the City Council set the time and place of the hearing.  

Based on the Planning Commission’s decision to approve a modified location for the proposed 
skate park, the applicant will develop revised plans prior to the City Council considering the 
appeals and a right-of-entry agreement. Preparing revised plans and association documentation 
will require additional time to complete; therefore, staff recommends the City Council schedule a 
hearing date of June 23, 2016 at 7:00 pm.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Skate Park Appeal - Richard Lippi
2. Skate Park Appeal - Wittwer Parkin LLP

Report Prepared By:  Rich Grunow
Community Development Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.C

Packet Pg. 44



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 R
ic

h
ar

d
 L

ip
p

i  
(1

41
3 

: 
M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 R
ic

h
ar

d
 L

ip
p

i  
(1

41
3 

: 
M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 R
ic

h
ar

d
 L

ip
p

i  
(1

41
3 

: 
M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 W
it

tw
er

 P
ar

ki
n

 L
L

P
  (

14
13

 :
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 W
it

tw
er

 P
ar

ki
n

 L
L

P
  (

14
13

 :
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 W
it

tw
er

 P
ar

ki
n

 L
L

P
  (

14
13

 :
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 W
it

tw
er

 P
ar

ki
n

 L
L

P
  (

14
13

 :
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 W
it

tw
er

 P
ar

ki
n

 L
L

P
  (

14
13

 :
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 W
it

tw
er

 P
ar

ki
n

 L
L

P
  (

14
13

 :
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ka
te

 P
ar

k 
A

p
p

ea
l -

 W
it

tw
er

 P
ar

ki
n

 L
L

P
  (

14
13

 :
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
A

ve
n

u
e 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

et
 H

ea
ri

n
g

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider an Amendment to Mid-Management Memorandum of Understanding 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider Approval of Amendment to the Mid-Management 
Employees Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in order to change the Fair Labor Standards 
Act (FSLA) status of the Environmental Projects Manager and Building Official to exempt 
effective April 1, 2016.

BACKGROUND: The FSLA status of the Environmental Projects Manager and the Building 
Official are not listed as exempt in the Mid-Management Employees MOU.

DISCUSSION: The Mid-Management Employees Group has members that are exempt from 
overtime and employees who receive overtime pay. The positions that are considered 
professional are listed in the MOU, and are considered exempt from overtime compensation. 
The positions listed as FSLA exempt are eligible for administrative time off. The Environmental 
Projects Manager and the Building Official are not listed as FSLA exempt in the MOU.

The Environmental Projects Manager position was created in 2013 (Resolution No. 3982). The 
position was classified as FSLA exempt, however, the language was not added to the MOU. 
The Building Official position was reclassified to the Mid-Management Group in 2010 
(Resolution No. 3783). The job description does not state if the position should be exempt or 
non-exempt and the current Building Official is non-exempt. After researching the job 
classification of Building Official in other cities, overwhelmingly the position is classified as FSLA 
exempt.

FISCAL IMPACT: The Building Official will become eligible for 80 hours administrative time off 
per calendar year, prorated in 2016. There will a potential reduction in overtime compensation 
for the Building Official.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Amendment to the Mid-Management Employees MOU

Report Prepared By:  Larry Laurent
Assistant to the City Manager

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.D

Packet Pg. 55



 

AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF CAPITOLA AND 

MID-MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola (City) and the Mid Management Employees, (collectively, 

the Union) have a Memorandum of Understanding; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City and the Union have an existing MOU with a term that began on July 1, 

2012 and expires on June 30, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the positions of Environmental Program Manager and Building Official are  

considered professional positions; and, 

 

WHEREAS, professional positions are considered exempt under Fair Labor Standards Act 

(FSLA); and, 

 

WHEREAS, exempt employees are not entitled to overtime compensation and are therefore 

eligible for administrative time off. 

 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED, SECTION 1, article 3 of the Mid-Management Employees 

Memorandum of Understanding shall be modified to reflect these changes. 

 

SECTION I.  WAGE SCHEDULES/HOURLY RATES/EMPLOYEE STATUS 

 
3.  Overtime 

All employees within the Mid-Management unit, except for the position of Senior Planner, 

Senior Accountant, Environmental Projects Manager, and Building Official which are exempt 

from FLSA, are hourly employees and can accrue overtime subject to the laws, rules, 

regulations and any other MOU provisions of the City, state and federal government. 

The normal regular work week commences on Sunday and consist of forty (40) hours 

except that the regular work week of public works department personnel engaged in 

maintenance activities shall be as approved by the City Manager.  Except for employees 

exempt under the FLSA, overtime will be compensated at the rate of one and one-half times 

the base rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 hours per week in a workweek.  Such 

additional compensation shall, at the employee’s election, be either in cash or compensatory 

time off, in accordance with Labor Code section 204.3. 

 With regard to this section “hours worked” shall not include sick leave.  Nor shall such 

a definition include vacation or compensated leave time off not scheduled in advance by at 

least ten working days.  “Hours Worked” shall also not include workers compensation time off 

unless immediate treatment is required on the date of injury for the injury incurred, in which 

case overtime is allowed providing the overtime accrued is an extension of the workday and 

the hours worked for the week exceed 40 hours. 

 The position of Senior Planner, Senior Accountant, Environmental Projects Manager, 

and Building Official are professional positions exempt under FLSA, and therefore not entitled 

to overtime compensation.  An Employee filling exempt positions are entitled to ten days per 

year of administrative time off.  Administrative leave is non-cumulative.  It may not be 

converted to cash.  One year’s worth of Administrative Leave becomes available on the first 

day of the calendar year.  The exception is persons hired mid-year, in which case 

administrative leave is prorated for the applicable period. (Reso. #3486). 

 

 

8.D.1

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

M
id

-M
an

ag
em

en
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
es

 M
O

U
  (

14
15

 :
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 M

id
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
M

O
U

)



 

 

 

Mid Management Employees    City of Capitola 

 

___________________________ 

 

____________________________ 

 

____________________________ 

 

____________________________ 

                     Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 

____________________________   Dated:_________________  

  

 

____________________________ 

 

____________________________ 

 

____________________________ 

 

 

Dated:_______________________    

 

 

8.D.1

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

M
id

-M
an

ag
em

en
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
es

 M
O

U
  (

14
15

 :
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 M

id
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
M

O
U

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution Authorizing Capitola's Participation in the CalRecycle 
Payment Program 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution.

BACKGROUND: The City has applied for, and has been awarded, funds from the CalRecycle 
Payment Program the past few years. This year, CalRecycle is requiring a Resolution to be 
approved prior to submitting to the Payment Program. The award has been used to help fund 
regional media campaigns emphasizing the importance of recycling.

FISCAL IMPACT: The City has been awarded grants in the amount $5,000 for the past six 
years. The grant award goes to help fund the regional Central Coast Media Coalition for 
Recycling media campaigns.

Report Prepared By:  Larry Laurent
Assistant to the City Manager

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

……

8.E

Packet Pg. 58



CalRecycle Grant Resolution 
April 28, 2016

DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. ___

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA
AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION FOR CALRECYCLE PAYMENT 

PROGRAMS AND RELATED AUTHORIZATIONS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Resources Code sections 48000 et seq., 14581, and 
42023.1(g), the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) has 
established various payment programs to make payments to qualifying jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority CalRecycle is required to establish 
procedures governing the administration of the payment programs; and

WHEREAS, CalRecycle’s procedures for administering payment programs require, 
among other things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain 
authorizations related to the administration of the payment program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that City of Capitola is authorized to submit an 
application to CalRecycle for any and all payment programs offered; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager, or his/her designee, is hereby 
authorized as Signature Authority to execute all documents necessary to implement and secure 
payment; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this authorization is effective until rescinded by the 
Signature Authority or this governing body.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 28th day of April 
2016, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Ed Bottorff, Mayor
ATTEST:

______________________, CMC
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

8.E

Packet Pg. 59



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Approve a Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget Amendment to Purchase Two 
Unmarked Police Vehicles 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Amend the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 State Supplemental Law 
Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF) Budget to increase expenditures by $40,020.

BACKGROUND: The California Legislature passed the “State Supplemental Law Enforcement 
Services Fund” (SLESF) bill. This bill is also known as the “Citizens Option for Public Safety” 
(COPS). Funds from the grant are to be exclusively used for supporting front line law 
enforcement and cannot be used to supplant existing funding. Funds from this program must be 
used for personnel and/or equipment. The Police Department was granted $100,000 in Fiscal 
Year 2014-2015 and has $55,020 remaining that must be used by June 30, 2016, or forfeited. 
Of the $55,020 available, $15,000 is already designated to capital projects in the Department.

DISCUSSION: To support the City’s front line law enforcement efforts, the Department intends 
to use $43,415.77 of the grant funds to purchase two unmarked vehicles. The City currently has 
seven unmarked vehicles and plans to reduce the fleet to six unmarked vehicles. One of the 
vehicles will replace an unmarked vehicle for the police detectives. The purchased vehicle will 
come from the City’s local vendor, Toyota of Santa Cruz, and will replace a 2002 Chevy Impala. 
The second vehicle to be purchased will be a 2016 Gem e4 electrical vehicle from Hollister 
Powersports, the City’s police motorcycle vendor. This new electric vehicle will replace two 
other vehicles: 2008 Gem vehicle that is non-operative and cannot be repaired and the 1989 
Mazda truck that is utilized for parking enforcement and traffic control. With a new electric 
vehicle the Department will be removing one traditional fuel vehicle from the City’s fleet. The 
remaining $11,604.23 of the fund balance will be used for range training supplies.

FISCAL IMPACT: The attached budget amendment will have no impact on the General Fund. 
Sufficient funds are available in the Unassigned SLESF Fund Balance.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. GEM Quote
2. Toyota Quote
3. Budget Amendment

Report Prepared By:  Rudy 
Escalante

Police Chief

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.F

Packet Pg. 60



Amend 2015-2016 Budget to Purchase Electric Vehicle 
April 28, 2016

8.F

Packet Pg. 61



 
www.hollisterpowersports.com 

 
[P] 831.630.5201  [F] 831.630.5706   411 San Felipe Road    Hollister, CA.   95023 

 

 

City of Capitola          April 8, 2016 

 
Items          MSRP 

Model: 

  2016 GEM e4         $11,999.00 

Destination Charge         $     795.00 

  Body Color, White (or Red or Black or Blue)      No Charge 

 

Options:  

  Carrier, S-Box (330lb capacity)       $ 2,000.00 

  Doors, Full Hard Doors (White, Red, Black or Blue)     $ 3,249.00 

  Bumper, Black Rugged Front and Rear       $    700.00 

  AGM Batteries (maintenance free)       $    753.00 

  Beacon Light         $    150.00 

  Windshield Defroster        $    325.00 

  Heater/Fan         $    499.00 

 

Sub TOTAL:           $20,470.00 

 

Hollister Powersports Discount:         <$1,230.00> 

 

Net Sale Price:           $19,240.00 

 

Additional Fees not included in the Sub Total price (Fee's are subject to change until the GEM is ordered): Sales Tax ($1,707.13), 

Tire Fee ($7.00), Doc Fee ($80.00), Electronic Filing Fee ($29.00), Registration Fee (exempt), Setup Fee ($190.00), Delivery Fee 

($0.00).  

 

Estimated grand total delivered to Capitola = $ 21,253.13 

 

 

 

Neal Zook, Sales Mgr 

Hollister Powersports 

(831) 630-5200 office 

8.F.1

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

E
M

 Q
u

o
te

  (
14

35
 :

 A
m

en
d

 2
01

5-
20

16
 B

u
d

g
et

 t
o

 P
u

rc
h

as
e 

E
le

ct
ri

c 
V

eh
ic

le
)



8.F.2

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

o
yo

ta
 Q

u
o

te
  (

14
35

 :
 A

m
en

d
 2

01
5-

20
16

 B
u

d
g

et
 t

o
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
E

le
ct

ri
c 

V
eh

ic
le

)



8.F.2

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

o
yo

ta
 Q

u
o

te
  (

14
35

 :
 A

m
en

d
 2

01
5-

20
16

 B
u

d
g

et
 t

o
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
E

le
ct

ri
c 

V
eh

ic
le

)



Date 4/8/2016

Requesting Department Police

Administrative 
Council X Item # 

Council Date: 4/28/2016
Council Approval

Account Description Increase/Decrease

Total $0

Account Description Increase/Decrease

Capital Outlay Machinery & Equipment $28,416

Supplies General Supplies 11,604 

$40,020

Net Impact (40,020) 

Purpose: Unmarked Vehicles & Range Training Supplies

Finance Department Approval

City Manager Approval

Total

City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form

Revenues

Department Head Approval

Account #

Account #

1300-00-00-000-4650.400

Expenditures

1300-00-00-000-4450.500

4/22/20168:20 AM 1740.xlsxGeneral Fund

8.F.3

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

14
35

 :
 A

m
en

d
 2

01
5-

20
16

 B
u

d
g

et
 t

o
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
E

le
ct

ri
c 

V
eh

ic
le

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for 
a Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve the project 
as conditioned.

BACKGROUND: The City Council reviewed the subject appeal on April 14, 2016, and indicated 
their intention to uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve the Design Permit and 
Variance application. However, the Council noticed a discrepancy between the proposed floor 
plan and elevations, specifically the placement of the front door. The City Council asked that the 
applicant revise the plans to address the discrepancy, and then continued the application to the 
April 28, 2016, City Council hearing (Attachment 2). 

DISCUSSION: The applicant submitted revised plans on April 19, 2016, (Attachment 1), which 
adjusted the floor plan to show the correct location of the front door and removed the exterior 
stairwell and water heater structure from the plans. The revised project plans now accurately 
depict the front entry wall, which contains an entrance to an exterior courtyard area in the side 
yard. The courtyard contains a trellis cover, and provides a concrete walkway to the main 
entrance located off the side yard. The applicant also removed the exterior stairwell from the 
proposal per the request of the neighboring property to the east, and replaced the proposed 
water heater structure in the western side yard with a tank-less water heater.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council uphold the Planning 
Commission approval of the variance due to the existing non-conforming setbacks throughout 
Garnet Street, the presence of 12 additional feet of unutilized right of way between the property 
line and the curb, and the proposed garage enclosure complements the existing character of the 
neighborhood.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Revised Project Plans 4-19-16
2. Draft City Council Minutes 4-14-16
3. City Council Agenda Packet and 

Staff Report 4-14-16

Report Prepared By:  Ryan Safty
Assistant 

Planner

9.A

Packet Pg. 66



4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal 
April 28, 2016

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

9.A

Packet Pg. 67



4040 4040

3
0

3
0

3
0

3
0

UP

5'-0"

4'-8"

3
1

'-
5

"

3
0

'-
0

"
1

9
'-
1

"

G A R N E T S T R E E T
60' R/W

C

LINE OF (E) 1ST
FLR GARAGE

WALL & 2ND FLR
WALL ABOVE

(E) CURB
& GUTTER

(E
)

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

CONCRETE FILL
INDICATES (P) 267
SQFT PERMEABLE
PAVER STAMPED
CONCRETE

S.B.

S.B.

(E
)

F
.Y

.S
.B

.

(P
)

F
.Y

.S
.B

.
T

O
G

A
T

E

(E
)

R
D

W
D

F
E

N
C

E

(E
)

6
F

O
O

T
R

D
W

D
F

E
N

C
E

(E
)

R
D

W
D

F
E

N
C

E

(E) RDWD FENCE

8
0

'
P

.L
.

40' P.L.

40' P.L.

8
0

'
P

.L
.

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

E
X

IST
IN

G

(P) ENTRY
WALL

(E) POWER
POLE

R
/W

NOTE: (E)
LANDSCAPE TO

REMAIN

CONCRETE FILL
INDICATES 245 SQFT

IMPERVIOUS (E)
CONCRETE TO REMAIN

(E) ROCK
LANDSCAPE

LINE OF (P)
DECK

ABOVE

HORIZONTAL HATCH
INDICATES (P) PERMEABLE 429
SQFT DECK < 30" ABOVE GRADE

(E) MONUMENT

R
.Y

.S
.B

.

LINE INDICATES
ADJACENT BUILDING

FOOTPRINT

LINE INDICATES
ADJACENT BUILDING

FOOTPRINT

(E) STORAGE TO
BE DEMOLISHED

REMOVE IMPERVIOUS (E)
200 SQFT CONCRETE.

REPLACE w/ LANDSCAPE

(P) SILVER
BUSH

(P) MEX
SAGE

(P) INCREASE WIDTH OF
D/W APPROACH TO 16'

REMOVE (E) 14' WIDTH
OF D/W APPROACH

ADJACENT (E) 14' WIDE
D/W APPROACH

ADJACENT (E) 20'
WIDE D/W APPROACH

NEW TANKLESS
WATER HEATER

GATE

(P) 4X6
ARBOR

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

NOTE: (E)
LANDSCAPE TO

REMAIN

CROSS BOX
INDICATES (E) 60
SQFT LANDSCAPE
TO BE REMOVED

LINE OF (E)
2ND FLR DECK
CANTILEVER

(P) 6'
WOOD
FENCE

LINE OF (P)
2ND FLR DECK
CANTILEVER

(P
)

F
.Y

.S
.B

.
T

O
G

A
R

A
G

E

(E
)

F
Y

SB

BUILDING OCCUPANCY GROUP:

R-3/U

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION:

TYPE VB

STORIES: TWO

TOTAL FLOOR AREA:

ENERGY METHOD: N/A

SPRINKLER SYSTEM: NON-SPRINKLERED

FIRE RET. ROOFING: CLASS B

GEOTECH REPORT: N/A

CODE EDITION:

2013 CA BUILDING CODE of REGULATIONS TITLE 24

2013 CA BUILDING 1 & 2 CODE

2013 CA RESIDENTIAL CODE

2013 CA MECHANICAL CODE

2013 CA ELECTRICAL CODE

2013 CA PLUMBING CODE

2013 CA FIRE CODE

2013 CA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE

2013 CA ENERGY CODE

REFERENCED STANDARDS

ALL INFORMATION RELATING TO EXISTING
CONSTRUCTION IS GIVEN AS BEING THE BEST
INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS,
DIMENSIONS AND BUILDING DATUMS AT THE JOB
SITE. ANY DISCREPANCIES REQUIRING
MODIFICATIONS TO THE CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE BUILDING
DESIGNER IMMEDIATELY. NO MODIFICATIONS SHALL
BE MADE BY THE CONTRACTOR WITHOUT
APPROVAL BY THE BUILDING DESIGNER.

EXISTING CONDITIONS

508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CA 95003 CONTACT:

PHONE 831-345-6892 OR EMAIL:
CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

BUILDING DESIGN
C A D H O M E S

508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CALIFORNIA 95003
PHONE 831- 345-6892
EMAIL: CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

CHRISTOPHER SANDMAN

CONSULTANTS:

BUILDING DESIGNER:

TOTALS

FLOOR AREA RATIO

PARCEL SIZE

GARAGE / CARPORT

EXISTING PROPOSED

RESIDENCE @ 1ST LEVEL

AREA CALCULATIONS

A.P.N.

APPLICANT

LOT AREA

ALLOWABLE LOT COVERAGE

LOT COVERAGE

COVERED PATIO / PORCH

UNHEATED STORAGE

CANTILVER >18" ABOVE GRADE

DECKS >18" ABOVE GRADE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE IN %

CONVERT (UNHEATED) (E)

WORKSHOP TO LIVING RM

1ST FLOOR (ENCLOSED)

FLOOR AREA (UNHEATED)

GARAGE AREA (-225 SQFT)

PORCH AREA (MINUS 1ST

140 SQFT+ 1/2 OF ALL

COVERED PORCH)

FLOOR AREA RATIO

2ND FLOOR (ENCLOSED)

TOTALS

4
9
8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5
0
1
0

SCALE 1/8"= 1'-0"

12-07-15

(P) BATH

A A R O N R E S I D E N C E
4980 GARNET STREET CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA 95010

SHEET NUMBER

= 2ND FLR REAR DECK

PLAN DATE:

D
A

V
ID

A
N

D
D

E
B

A
A

R
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A1

A.P.N. 034-043-16

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

VICINITY MAP

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

DEMOLISH (E) WEST STORAGE

N.T.S.

-18 SQFT

SUB TOTAL

CADHOMES BUILDING DESIGN

(E) WEST STORAGE 18 SQFT

18 SQFT

034-043-16

SHEET INDEX
A1) COVER SHEET, SITE PLAN, VICINITY MAP

AREA CALCULATIONS

A2) (E) & (P) 1ST FLOOR PLAN

A3) (E) & (P) 2ND FLOOR PLAN

A4) (E) & (P) ELEVATIONS

A5) (E) & (P) ELEVATIONS

A6) DRAINAGE PLAN

A7) PROPOSED 3 D'S/COLOR BOARD

-18 SQFT

3200 SQFT

PROJECT DATA:

PROJECT ADDRESS:
4980 GARNET STREET
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER:
034-043-16

OWNER CONTACT INFORMATION:
DAVID & DEB AARON
4980 GARNET STREET
408-396-1631
:

(P) BATH

PROJECT
LOCATION

468 SQFT

390 SQFT 40 SQFT

40 SQFT

1262 SQFT -304 SQFT

958 SQFT

29.93 %

3200 SQFT

468 SQFT 40 SQFT

>30"

858 SQFT

DECK: (E) 386 SQFT- 376 SQFT= (P) 10 SQFT- 150 SQFT CREDIT= 0 SQFT

390 SQFT

-48 SQFT1734 SQFT

GARAGE

1686 SQFT

52.68 %

386 SQFT

-70 SQFT

PROPOSAL TO OBTAIN A VARIANCE TO ADD
5'x22' ONTO EXISTING CARPORT
APPROXIMATELY 6 FEET INTO FRONT YARD
SETBACK RESULTING IN A 430 SQFT 2-CAR
GARAGE. SCOPE OF WORK TO INCLUDE A
KITCHEN REMODEL, LOWER BATH
REMODEL/ADDITION & ADD CLOSET IN 1ST
FLOOR SOUTHWEST BEDROOM

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

PROPOSAL TO OBTAIN A VARIANCE TO ADD
5'x22' ONTO EXISTING CARPORT
APPROXIMATELY 6 FEET INTO FRONT YARD
SETBACK RESULTING IN A 430 SQFT 2-CAR
GARAGE. SCOPE OF WORK TO INCLUDE A
KITCHEN REMODEL, LOWER BATH
REMODEL/ADDITION & ADD CLOSET IN 1ST
FLOOR SOUTHWEST BEDROOM

SITE PLAN

-386 SQFT + 20 SQFT

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
4-

19
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



4040 4040

3
0
3

0
3

0
3

0

UP

505 sq ft

5'-4"

7
'-
6

"

33'-0"

1
3

'-
0

"

2'-11"

4'-0"

3
'-
5

3
/4

"

2
0

'-
0

"

22'-0"

12'-9 1/2"

1
2

'-
7

1
/2

"

10'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

GARAGE

HALL

REMOVE (E)
WINDOW

CLOSET

BEDROOM

(P) BATH

LINE OF (E) GARAGE
WALL & WALL ABOVE

UTILITY

HALL

CLOSET

BEDROOM

CLOSET

DECK

DECK

(P) DECK < 30" ABOVE GRADE

LIVING AREA

(P
)

T
R

E
LL

IS

(E) LANDSCAPE

LINE OF (P)
DECK ABOVE

(E
)

R
D

W
D

F
E

N
C

E
T

O
R

E
M

A
IN

ADD DOOR

DECK

(E) RDWD FENCE

GARBAGE
CANS

ADD 6' FENCE
& GATE

REMOVE (E)
STAIRWAY

(N)
TANKLE

SS WH

UP

UP

456 sq ft

7
'-
1

1
/4

"

1
4

'-
6

1
/2

"

10'-4"

1
0

'-
1

0
3

/4
"

26'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

1
5

'-
0

"

12'-8 1/2"

3
3

'-
0

"

LIVING AREA

CARPORT

CLOSET

BEDROOM

REMOVE (E)
WINDOW

(E) WINDOW?

CLOSETBEDROOM

BATH
HALL

HALL

INSTALL A 5/8" X
8 FOOT COPPER
GROUND ROD

PROPOSED WALLS

EXISTING WALLS

ALTERED WALLS

WALL LEGEND

TO BE REMOVED

508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CA 95003 CONTACT:

PHONE 831-345-6892 OR EMAIL:
CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

BUILDING DESIGN
C A D H O M E S

4
9
8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5
0
1
0

12-07-15

A2

SHEET NUMBER

PLAN DATE:

D
A

V
ID

A
N

D
D

E
B

A
A

R
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

LINE OF
DECK ABOVE

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

REMOVE (E) 340 SQFT CONCRETE

SLAB & ADD (P) DECK

REMOVE (E)
STORAGE SQFT

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

EXISTING 1ST FLOOR PLAN
scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
4-

19
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



DN

3
0
3

0
3

0
3

0

4040

R
E

F
.

D
/W

D/W

813 sq ft

18'-0"

5
'-
0

"

4'-0" 4'-0"

3
'-
4

"

3
3

'-
0

1
/4

"

1
5

'-
0

"
3

'-
5

1
/2

"
2

'-
8

"
1

1
'-
1

0
3

/4
"

3
3

'-
0

1
/4

"

1
0

'-
0

1
/4

"
2

3
'-
0

"

26'-0"

13'-1 3/4"4'-0"8'-10 1/4"

26'-0"

10'-3 1/2"

OPEN BELOW

REMOVE (E)
WINDOW

REMOVE (E) 6'x4'

KITCHEN

HALL

LIVING

CLOSET

HALL

LAUNDRY

REMOVE (E)
WINDOW

LINE OF DECK BELOW

FAMILY

DECK

DECK

BATH

SKYLT SKYLT

SKYLTSKYLT

SKYLT

ADD 2x8 CEILING
JOIST @ 16" O.C.

42" RAIL

LIVING AREA

DN

REF.

813 sq ft

8
'-
6

"

1
5

'-
0

"

26'-0"

6
'-
0

"

1
0

'-
0

"

23'-1 7/16"

9
'-
9

5
/8

"
9

'-
2

3
/8

"

OPEN BELOW

DECK

LIVING

KITCHEN

HALL

FAMILY

CLOSET

BATH

LAUNDRY

DECK

LIVING AREA

PROPOSED WALLS

EXISTING WALLS

ALTERED WALLS

WALL LEGEND

TO BE REMOVED

508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CA 95003 CONTACT:

PHONE 831-345-6892 OR EMAIL:
CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

BUILDING DESIGN
C A D H O M E S

4
9
8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5
0
1
0

12-07-15

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

PROPOSED 2ND FLOOR PLAN
scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

EXISTING 2ND FLOOR PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

PLAN DATE:

D
A

V
ID

A
N

D
D

E
B

A
A

R
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A3

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
4-

19
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



2
2

'-
11

"

508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CA 95003 CONTACT:

PHONE 831-345-6892 OR EMAIL:
CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

BUILDING DESIGN
C A D H O M E S

4
9
8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5
0
1
0

12-07-15

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATIONEXISTING NORTH ELEVATION

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

EXISTING EAST ELEVATION

SHEET NUMBER

PLAN DATE:

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" D
A

V
ID

A
N

D
D

E
B

A
A

R
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION

A4

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

RW

FENCE

RW

FENCE

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
4-

19
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CA 95003 CONTACT:

PHONE 831-345-6892 OR EMAIL:
CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

BUILDING DESIGN
C A D H O M E S

4
9
8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5
0
1
0

12-07-15

SHEET NUMBER

PLAN DATE:

D
A

V
ID

A
N

D
D

E
B

A
A

R
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATIONEXISTING WEST ELEVATION

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATIONEXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION

A5

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
4-

19
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



UP

DS DS

DS

DS

DS

G A R N E T S T R E E T

R/W 60'

C

LINE OF (E)
GARAGE WALL &

WALL ABOVE

(E) CURB
& GUTTER

(E
)

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

CONCRETE FILL
INDICATES (P) 267 SQFT
PERMEABLE PAVER
STAMPED CONCRETE

S.B.

(E
)

F
.Y

.S
.B

.

(P
)

F
.Y

.S
.B

.
T

O
G

A
T

E

(E
)

6
F

O
O

T
R

D
W

D
F

E
N

C
E

(E
)

6
F

O
O

T
R

D
W

D
F

E
N

C
E

(E
)

6
F

O
O

T
R

D
W

D
F

E
N

C
E

(E) 6 FOOT RDWD FENCE

8
0

'
P

.L
.

40' P.L.

40' P.L.

8
0

'
P

.L
.

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

E
X

IST
IN

G
(P) ENTRY

WALL

(E) POWER
POLE

R
/W

NOTE: (E)
LANDSCAPE TO

REMAIN

ANGLE HATCH INDICATES
235 SQFT IMPERVIOUS (E)
CONCRETE TO REMAIN

(E) ROCK
LANDSCAPE

HORIZONTAL HATCH
INDICATES (P) PERMEABLE 429
SQFT DECK < 30" ABOVE GRADE

(E) MONUMENT

LINE INDICATES ADJACENT
BUILDING FOOTPRINT

LINE INDICATES
ADJACENT BUILDING

FOOTPRINT

(E) STORAGE
TO BE

DEMOLISHED

ANGL HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 200
SQFT CONCRETE.

REPLACE w/ LANDSCAPE

(E)

(P) SILVER
BUSH

(P) MEX
SAGE

(P) INCREASE WIDTH OF
D/W APPROACH TO 16'

(E) 14' WIDTH OF D/W
APPROACH

ADJACENT (E) 14' WIDE
D/W APPROACH

ADJACENT (E) 20'
WIDE D/W APPROACH

(E) DOWNSPOUT DISCHARGES
ONTO A CONC. SPLASH BLOCK &
DISPURSES INTO THE LANDSCAPE

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

NOTE: (E)
LANDSCAPE TO

REMAIN

ANGLE HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 364 SQFT
DEMOLISHED CONCRETE

CROSS BOX
INDICATES (E) 60
SQFT LANDSCAPE
TO BE REMOVED

(E) DOWNSPOUT DISCHARGES
ONTO A CONC. SPLASH BLOCK &
DISPURSES INTO THE LANDSCAPE

(E) DOWNSPOUT DISCHARGES
ONTO A CONC. WALKWAY &

DISPURSES INTO THE LANDSCAPE

(P) DOWNSPOUT DISCHARGES
ONTO A CONC. SPLASH BLOCK &
DISPURSES INTO THE LANDSCAPE

4:12 SLOPE

(P
)

F
.Y

.S
.B

.
T

O
G

A
R

A
G

E

(E) DOWNSPOUT DISCHARGES
ONTO A CONC. WALKWAY &

DISPURSES INTO THE LANDSCAPE

4:12 SLOPE

4:12 SLOPE 4:12 SLOPE

1" CROWN IN DRIVEWAY.
DIRECT SHEET FLOW RUN-
OFF ON TO LANDSCAPE @
EACH SIDE OF DRIVEWAY

NATURAL GRADE

DRIVEWAY SHALL BE MIN.3.5"
CONCRETE WITH 5" OF CLASS 2
AGGREGATE BASE BELOW

DRIVEWAY CROSS SECTION NO SCALE

DS

DRAINAGE LEGEND

PROPERTY LINE

NOTE:ALL DOWNSPOUTS SHALL
DISCHARGE ONTO CONCRETE SPLASH
BLOCKS AND PERMEATE INTO LANDSCAPE.

EXISTING & FINAL
DRAINAGE PATTERN

PROPOSED PERMEABLE
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CA 95003 CONTACT:

PHONE 831-345-6892 OR EMAIL:
CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

BUILDING DESIGN
C A D H O M E S

4
9
8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5
0
1
0

12-07-15

SHEET NUMBER

PLAN DATE:

A6

D
A

V
ID

A
N

D
D

E
B

A
A

R
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
4-

19
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



508 SANTA MARGUARITA DRIVE
APTOS, CA 95003 CONTACT:

PHONE 831-345-6892 OR EMAIL:
CADHOMES@NETSCAPE.COM

BUILDING DESIGN
C A D H O M E S

4
9
8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5
0
1
0

12-07-15

COLORS & MATERIALS

SHEET NUMBER

PLAN DATE:

D
A

V
ID

A
N

D
D

E
B

A
A

R
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

1) BODY COLOR: LIGHT FRENCH BLUE

2) TRIM COLOR: PURE WHITE

3) OGEE GUTTER: DOVER WHITE

4) ROOFING: (E) GRAY CLASS 'B' COMP SHINGLES

5) FRONT DOOR: MAHOGANY STAINED WOOD

6) WINDOWS: WHITE VINYL MILGUARD

7) EXISTING FENCE: UNTREATED REDWOOD

8) ROCK POST BASE: COUNTRY LEDGESTONE

9) DECK RAILING: 4x4 RDWD POSTS w/ CABLE BALUSTRADE

10) SIDE & REAR DECK RAILINGS: 4x4 RDWD POST w/ 2x2 BALUSTRADE

11) MATCH EXISTING T1-11 FIR SIDING

A7
EXISTING NEIGHBORHOOD SETBACKS

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
4-

19
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
4-

14
-1

6 
 (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



City of Capitola Agenda

Mayor: Ed Bottorff
Vice Mayor: Stephanie Harlan
Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Dennis Norton
Michael Termini

Treasurer: Christine McBroom

REVISED

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, APRIL 14, 2016

7:00 PM

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

City of Capitola                                Page 1                       Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Dennis Norton, Stephanie Harlan, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini and 
Mayor Ed Bottorff

2. PRESENTATIONS

A. Introduction of Sergeant Mark Gonzalez and Senior Officer Sara Ryan 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: None.

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

A. Item 9.B. Public Communications regarding Design Permit for 4980 Garnet Street 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 2 Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time.

6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration.

7. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS

8. CONSENT CALENDAR
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the March 24, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Special Meetings of March 17 
and March 31, 2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes.

C. Award Construction Contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for the Rosedale 
Area Paving Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Award a contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for 
the Rosedale Area Paving Project with a bid in the amount of $228,676.50 for 
construction of the Rosedale Avenue Paving Project, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to add a section of Plum Street from Rosedale Avenue to the Brookvale 
Terrace Mobile Home Park into the project at an estimated cost of $12,000.

D. Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton and Esplanade Improvement 
Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton Avenue and 
Esplanade Intersection Improvements in the amount of $44,645 for the 
addition of sidewalk adjacent the David Lyng Real Estate office at the corner 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 3 Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

of Stockton Avenue and Capitola Avenue; and

2. Authorize and budget amendment receiving unanticipated revenue in the 
amount of $10,000 from David Lyng for this project; and

3. Authorize the transfer of $34,645 within the Capital Improvement Fund to 
cover the balance of this change order with funding coming from the Village 
Sidewalk Cooperative Project funding bank.

E. Professional Services Agreement with Ben Noble: Urban and Regional Planning for 
the Zoning Code Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement 
with Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning in the amount of $26,110 for 
completion of the Zoning Code Update.  

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of 
each item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) 
Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) 
Decision.

A. Accept Report on the Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Wharf Resiliency 
Study (Study) and Provide Direction to Staff 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Study and provide direction to staff on a 10-
year plan of improvements for the Capitola Wharf.

B. Appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for a 
Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve 
the project as conditioned.

C. Consider a Wharf House Lease Extension 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Give staff direction on the terms of the Wharf House 
Lease Extension and whether to prepare a competitive proposal process for the 
facility.

10. ADJOURNMENT
 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 4 Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at 
the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also 
available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? 
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime.

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)

http://www.cityofcapitola.org
http://www.cityofcapitola.org


AUUIIIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM 9.B. 
4114116 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

From: James Salata <jsa lata@GardenCityConst.com> 
Thursday, February 25, 2016 11:23 AM 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject: FW: Item #10 ,0 , regarding Appeal of Design Permit and Variance for a Garage Addition 

Located at 4980 Garnet Street. 

To The Members of the Planning Commission 

My wife and I reside at 1505 Lincoln Ave. in Capitola across directly from the above mentioned project. On 
several occasions we have gone to the City of Capitola for permits. Once for a fence and once to close in a 
porch on the second story. In both instances we were instructed that we need to stick to the rules and 
ordinances in effeci . In fact they were adamantly applied. The proposed variance at 4980 throws off the 
rhythm of the street and it does not matter how good the architecture supposedly is as that has nothing 
whatsoever to do with it. If you look at the street you can see and feel how all the houses line up as per the 
ordinances in place, There should be no exception for this property and this opens up the possibility of 
everyone asking for a variance, The laws and rules should be applied equally to all as they have been to us 
and they are thel'e to provide consistency to the block. 

Our neighborhood folks respect each other and try to be tolerant of each other but to encroach and throw 
the blocks arc hitecture out of rhythm is flat wrong and sets a very poor precedent moving into the future. 

Please do NOT approve this variance. 

James A. Salata 

, . , . 
<1. zf1 ... ~\ lY 
CONSTRUCTION 

ft • 'IH,l " I ... t· Ull fllHf Iff' ') 

c o ,... !. f I' U C f l O to C Ot. t:. u ... , I , . I.. U L II L. '" C I' ... r ,. I 

, , ." 
James Salata, President 

618 S, First Street, Sa n Jose, Ca 95113 
P 408·289-8807 F 408-289-8523 

www.gardencityconstruction.com 

CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURJTY NOTICE: This email and any attached fi les are confidentia l and 
intended solely for the intended recipient(s), If you are not the named recipient you should nOlread, distribute, 
copy or al ler Ihis email. Warning: Although precauti ons have been taken 10 make sure no vi ruses are present in 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM 9.B. 
4/14/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

March 3, 2016 

City Council 
City of Capi tola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, California 95010 

APR 13 2015 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

Re: Appeal from issuance of Variance by the Capitola Planning Commission 
for 4980 Garnet Street 
# 15-181 APN: 034-043-16 

Dear Capitola City Council: 

On February 4, 20 I 6, during its regularly scheduled meeting, the Capitola Planning Commission 
voted 4 to 0 in favor of granting our request for a Design Permit and Variance that included a garage 
addition to be located in the front setback area of our home at 4980 Garnet Street. The Planning 
Commission 's decision was made following consideration of the Commun ity Development Staff 
Report ("Staff Report") and its recommendation for approval, and written and public comments from 
undersigned property owners and appellant Jan Caldare lla. This letter (a) supplements our letter to 
the Planning Commiss ion, dated January 28, 20 I 6 ("Support Letter") attached as Attachment I to 
this letter, support ing our request for a Design Permit and Variance, and (b) responds to certain 
matters rai sed by appe llant Caldarella 's letter to the City Council , dated February 14,2016 ("Letter 
of Appea l"). 

Our family has lived in Santa Cruz county for the past II yearS, and we purchased our home at 4980 
Garnet Street in October 20 15 to be our full time residence. As we worked to enhance the 
functiona lity of the home to fit our family's needs, we al so tried to design a home that blended with 
the community. We believe the proposed additional 5 feet ofiength to our garage will create on ly 
minimal visual impact on the neighborhood, and that granting the requested Variance will not create 
special privileges for us in light of existing structures in the neighborhood. 

The Staff Report references 12 propelties on two blocks of Garnet Street with less than 15 feet 
setbacks. We beli eve that granting Ollr Variance permitt ing an additional 5 feet of encroachment into 
the setback area will not constitute a specia l privilege in light of those 12 properties. Furthermore, 
we note that the Staff Report does not include homes that are built across the 20 feet setback but 
which have greater thim 15 feet setbacks. For example, if a home had an 18 foot setback (still less 
than the 20 foot code requirement), that home would not appear on the Staff Report but it would still 
violate the setback requirement. The Staff Report is focused on two blocks of Garnet Street, but 
there are also many properties in the Jewel Box on nearby streets that also do not comply. Below is a 
photograph showing three add itional examples on Linco ln Avenue and Prospect Ave nue ofhotlses 
not on Garnet Street but in very close proximity. We would disagree with the contention that the 
setback requirement applies only to the three houses at 50 I 0 Garnet, 4980 Garnet, and 4960 Garnet. 
It applies to the entire ne ighborhood, so the entire neighborhood shou ld be considered in evaluating 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



whether the granting of our Variance request wou ld constitute a spec ial privilege. 

Appellants Mr. and Mrs. Ca ldarella have fi led an appeal of the Planning Comm iss ion dec ision, and 
have been joined by certain other property owners in the neighborhood. We would like to 
respectfully address and clarify certain elements of that Letter of Appea l: 

• We currently have a 6 foot deck overhang at the fro nt of our home. The requested Variance 
to increase the length of Our garage by 5 feet applies only to the first fl oor of the structure, 
and sits enti rely under an ex isting 6 foot deck overhang. In fact, our plans decrease the size 
overall mass of that second story deck, thereby min imizing the impact on visual site corridor 
and light on adjoining parce ls. Our new 5 feet of garage space wi ll sit entirely under the 
existing deck overhang (see yellow shaded area be low). Appe llants do not object to the blue 
shaded area, but do object to the yell ow shaded area. 

Before After 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



• Our house is already bui lt I foot across the 20 foot setback. Currently, there exists 19 feet 
between the house and the propelty li ne, and then there is an addit ional 12 feet ofunutilized 
right of way between the propelty line and the curb for a total of31 feet. Our Variance 
req uest seeks to increase the current encroachment by 25% (5 feel divided by 20 fee t = 25%). 
The Letter of Appeal characterizes those facts differentl y, and says that we are requesting a 6 
foot encroachment that amounts to a 30% (notwithstandi ng the fact that the I foot 
encroachment currently exists). Numbers can be interpreted di ffe rent ways. However, from 
a visual perspective, a person is unable to visuall y detect the locati on of property line. When 
viewed from the street, the 5 foot encroachment increase is a change of 16% from the 
ex isti ng house to the curb (5 feet divided by 31 feet = 16%). Even if you were to consider 
the total encroachment at 30%, we beli eve the additional 5 feet of first floor garage (bui lt 
under the existing deck overhang) will only slightly modify the character of the 
neighborhood gi ven the 12 foot unuti lized right of way. 

• We beli eve Page 4 of the Letter of Appeal mischaracteri zes what is "existing" versus what is 
"encroaching." The pin k shaded area refl ects what currently exists should also extend I foot 
into the ye ll ow shaded area. The heading is misleading in that it suggests the I foot yellow 
strip shown below does not currently exist. We bel ieve a more accurate description would 
show the I foot strip as both pink (existing) and al so ye llow ( I foot is the ex ist ing 
encroachment plus 5 feet under the requested Variance). Note, regardless of color, the entire 
5 foot garage extension will sit under the deck shown in the picture. 

;:l .... "'- i ~ e'£N~T"..x, / 'Y5'u...ow l ~ eN~-"'C.~1::N1 

(,A<t.Ne:\!T. 

snl C 

\ -1 
GAR tlEY STREET 

This 1 foot strip run"in, thelentth of the ,aras' currently .:l(ists. It 
shows th. exlst'na 1 foot encroacnment (should b. pink) 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



• Page 3 of the Letter of Appeal includes an overhead picture from Google maps showing the 
"current alignment of houses in existing area" We believe this perfectly demonstrates our 
point. This "current alignment" view will not change, as the requested 5 feet of garage space 
will sit entirely under the existing deck overhang. With the Variance, a future Google map 
picture showi ng this same street will show no change to the alignment. See the photo below 
from Page 3 of the Letter of Appea l: 

I . "' 4980 Gamet St 

CAxLaE:NI C>..u &-N. ""'801 c::::5C .\J.ou.~"'.6 ;~ 
:t::f"<'~I12P Afl.:;;:F>.:: 

• Appellants acknowledge in their Letter of Appeal that three properties on thi s block of Garnet 
Street do not meet the setback requirement, and suggest those properties shou ld be 
disregarded. Nevertheless, these three properties do exist. They do not observe the 20 foot 
setback requirement. They do impact the overall look and feel of the neighborhood. Those 
facts on the ground cannot be disregarded, and those properties shou ld not be discounted 
when considering whether our granting our Variance constitutes a special privilege. 

• The alternative recommended by the Letter of Appeal (add 5 feet of garage space in the 
opposite direction toward the back of the house) would requi re the demolition of the 
immediately adjacent downstairs bathroom, the immediate ly adjacent staircase to access the 
upstairs of the house, a pOltion of the two small first floor bedrooms, require an entire 
redes ign of the upstairs to accommodate the relocated staircase, as well as impact numerous 
structural and load bearing walls. It is neither practical nor financially viable to teal' down 
the structure to pursue this alternative. We like the layout of the house, and want to maintain 
its overall flow. Our goa l has been [0 enhance the existing home lot to better suit our famil y. 
while also complying with the city ' s code requirements and variance procedures. 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



The plans we submitted with our Design Permit and Variance are not about us requesting a bigger 
house, or just about the 5 foot Variance. Our designs also provide benefits to adjoining neighbors: 

We are removing the second story windows at the front of both sides of the house, which will 
improve privacy and reduce noise for ne ighbors on the east and west adjoining parce ls. Currently, 
these windows open directly into the neighbor' s side yards and look direct ly into similarly placed 
windows on both ne ighbors' houses. 

We are removing the first floor window on the back bedroom on the west side of our house, 
which wi ll also dec rease noise and improve privacy for the west side adjoin ing neighbor. 

Our current front deck extends the length of the front of the house from the west to east side 
oftlie propelty, giving us a line of site view into our neighbor's yards on both sides. We are 
decreasing the size of the front deck so that it does not extend to the outer edges of the prope rty and 
thereby improve privacy for both east and west side neighbors. 

We are removi ng the large cement driveway in front of our house, and replaci ng it with a 
permeable material with sign ifica ntly smaller footprint. This will red uce water runoff to the street 
and adjoining parcels. 

Our house to lot size ratio is current ly 39.43%, whi ch is greater than the maximum 30% ratio under 
the current code. Our designs wi ll bring the house to lot ratio down to 29.5% (shrin king the size), 
and bringing it into conformance with current code requirements. We have made trade-offs and 
other significant red uctions to bring the overall size of the house into compliance with code, even 
with the 5 foot ga rage extension. 

Based on the forego ing, we believe the Planning Commiss ion was co rrect, and req uest that you 
affirm their decision by granting our request for a Design Permit and Variance. Thank you fOI' yOLII' 

considerat ion, We are happy to answer questions or provide addit iona l information about the 
proposed project. Attachment I and the Staff Report are incorporated herein by this reference. 

Very truly yours, 

David & Deb Aaron 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for 
a Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve the project 
as conditioned.

BACKGROUND: The Planning Commission considered an application on February 4, 2016, for 
a Design Permit and variance for a garage addition to an existing single-family home at 4980 
Garnet Street. The existing home is located in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district. The proposed home addition includes converting the existing two-car carport into a 
garage, replacing the existing decks with smaller decks, and creating a new entryway along the 
front elevation. The applicant is seeking a variance to extend the proposed garage six feet into 
the required 20 foot front yard setback. The remodel also includes modifications to window and 
door placement to create increased privacy along the side elevations and an updated 
appearance of the front elevation (Attachment 3).  

The existing carport is non-conforming in that it does not meet the front yard setback 
requirement of 20 feet and is not large enough to contain a legal, 20 foot deep covered parking 
space. The existing carport is setback 19 feet from the property line and the interior is only 15 
feet in depth. In order to enclose the existing carport and create the two conforming, covered 
parking spaces, the applicant is requesting a variance from the front yard setback requirements 
to further extend the non-conforming covered parking area an additional five feet into the 
required front yard setback. The finished garage would have a 14 foot front yard setback, 
however there are 12 feet of unutilized right-of-way between the property line and the curb in 
this sidewalk exempt neighborhood. As proposed, the garage would be located 26 feet from the 
curb, which allows for two full-sized uncovered parking spaces in the front yard.

The existing home also contains a non-conforming second story deck in the front that is setback 
13 feet from the front property line. The applicant proposes to reduce the size of the deck from 
156 to 104 square feet, but continue the non-conforming setback at 13 feet. The variance for the 
garage addition will allow the front wall of the garage to encroach within 14 feet of the front 
property line, thus the garage will be setback further than the existing second story deck. Prior 
to the Planning Commission hearing, the applicant submitted additional material to represent 
the massing proposed in the front setback areas relative to neighboring properties (Attachment 
6).

From a cursory review of the neighborhood, staff found that there are other properties within this 
neighborhood that do not meet the front yard setback requirements, and that the existing home 
at 4980 Garnet Street is the only home within this block of Garnet that has a carport instead of 
an enclosed garage (Attachment 7). 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal 
April 14, 2016

After considering the staff report and testimony from the applicant and members of the public, 
the Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the Design Permit and Variance 
request (Attachment 1). The Planning Commission based their decision on the fact that the 
project will have minimal impacts on the neighborhood due to the non-conforming setbacks of 
neighboring properties, and that the subject property will be able to utilize the sidewalk exempt 
right-of-way in front of their property for uncovered parking. The Planning Commission felt that 
the impact on the neighborhood was minimal, and that the project would enhance the existing 
character of the neighborhood by enclosing the existing carport. An appeal of the Planning 
Commission decision was received on February 16, 2016. 

DISCUSSION: On February 16, 2016, the City received an appeal of the Planning Commission 
decision (Attachment 8). The appeal cites concerns with the impact to community character as it 
relates to the uniformity of the surrounding neighborhood and that the garage variance would 
constitute the granting of a special privilege. 

Community Character: The appellants identified concerns that the proposed garage enclosure 
and front yard setback encroachment would have a negative effect on the character and 
“uniformity” of the existing neighborhood. Specifically, “this variance reflects a 30% 
encroachment of the front yard setback, which is unprecedented in the 4900 block of Garnet 
Street. Currently the homes on this block line up visually as a result of the setback ordinance.” 

Staff conducted a survey on the Garnet Street neighborhood (Attachment 7). The survey 
identifies 12 other properties in the area that do not meet front yard setback requirements along 
the entirety of Garnet Street, and three that do not conform within the specific 4900 block of 
Garnet. The appellant claims that these three homes (5005, 4955, and 5080 Garnet St) are not 
comparable. 

The property at 5005 Garnet Street received a variance in 1999 to reduce parking requirements 
on a property that did not meet setback standards. 4955 Garnet Street is an existing, non-
conforming property that was remodeled in 2000. 5080 Garnet Street is an existing apartment 
complex that, in 1987, apparently met all setback requirements. However, the plans submitted 
did not accurately represent the property setbacks, and after construction, staff realized the 
error. Staff required the applicant to resubmit for a variance in 1988 for the deck encroachment, 
which was approved. Although the three properties are not identical in nature to the subject 
property at 4980 Garnet St, they similarly benefit from reduced setback requirements. 

Staff also observed that the home at 4980 Garnet Street is the only home within 4900 block that 
has a carport rather than a garage. The proposed remodel would update the property with a 
more compatible aesthetic to the existing homes within the block. 

Variance Findings: The appellants identified concerns that the variance approval constitutes a 
granting of a special privilege as the existing parcel contains sufficient space to incorporate the 
new garage within allowable setbacks by pushing the home further into the rear yard. 

During the Planning Commission review, it was noted that there is adequate room on the lot to 
accommodate a single-family home which complies with front yard setback requirements. 
However, to do so, the applicant would need to remove the existing stairwell located behind the 
back wall of the garage, which would require the applicant to demolish and rebuild much of the 
existing lower and upper floors of the home.  

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal 
April 14, 2016

Although there are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property in terms of size, 
shape, or configuration, several other properties in the vicinity and under identical zoning enjoy 
privileges of decreased front yard setbacks. 

Staff recommends that the City Council uphold the Planning Commission approval of the 
variance due to the existing non-conforming setbacks throughout Garnet Street, the presence of 
12 additional feet of unutilized right of way between the property line and the curb, and because 
the garage enclosure will complement the existing character of the neighborhood.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Planning Commission 2-4-16 minutes
2. Planning Commission 2-4-16 Staff Report
3. Project Plans
4. Permissible Structural Alterations Calculation
5. Applicant's Variance Request
6. Applicant Presentation 2-4-16 Planning Commission Hearing
7. Neighborhood Setback Survey
8. Appeal Letter

Report Prepared By:  Ryan Safty
Assistant Planner

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 2/11/2016 8:45 AM

FINAL MINUTES
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2016
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

C. 4980 Garnet St #15-181 APN: 034-043-16
Design Permit and Variance request for a garage addition to be located in the front yard 
setback area of an existing residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: David Aaron 
Representative: Chris Sandman, filed 11/4/15

Commissioner Smith recused herself since she owns property within 500 feet of the project 
and left the dais.

Assistant Planner Safty presented the staff report. He noted the project includes a reduction 
in the size of a nonconforming deck and that existing parking in the carport is nonconforming. 
The proposal creates two full-size covered spaces in exchange for additional encroachment 
into the front yard setback. The subject property has no special circumstances, but other 
properties in the area have a similar encroachment.

Dave Aaron, applicant, spoke on behalf of the project and offered images showing the impact 
of the additional encroachment. 

Commissioner Ortiz confirmed that garbage cans will be screened behind the stairway. 

Commissioner Newman confirmed the project will have four parking spaces with use of the 
right-of-way in the sidewalk exempt area.

Jan Caldarella, neighbor, noted that the original application notice did not include a variance. 
She does not feel that in the immediate neighborhood properties with encroachments are 
comparable and her family and others have remodeled subject to the required setback.

Commissioner Ortiz said this is a difficult application. When she considers a variance, she 
asks is it moderate and does it enhance the neighborhood? She also suggested if there are 
many nonconforming properties in this neighborhood, perhaps an ordinance change is 
appropriate. Commissioner Westman agreed and noted the large second-story rear deck is 
being reduced. 

Commissioner Newman said he feels the project is positive, but has technical concerns about 
meeting variance standards. Properties two blocks away with encroachments are not in the 
immediate neighborhood.

Chairperson Welch said he looks at the impact on the neighborhood. In this case, he feels 
there has been compromise and the benefits outweigh the concerns.

Motion: Approve a Design Permit and Variance with the following conditions and findings:

CONDITIONS
1. The project approval consists of a garage enclosure, deck remodel, and variance to front 

yard setback requirements to an existing single-family home. The maximum Floor Area 
Ratio for the 3,200 square foot property is 57% (1,824 square feet).  The total FAR of the 
project is 56.6% with a total of 1,813 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – February 4, 2016 2

within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on February 4, 2016, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing.

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans. 

4. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm 
Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated 
as a sheet into the construction plans. All construction shall be done in accordance with 
Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).  

5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.  

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #15-181 
shall be paid in full.

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.  

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection.

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID).

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan. 
Erosion and sediment control shall be installed prior to the commencement of 
construction and maintained throughout the duration of the construction project. 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – February 4, 2016 3

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way.

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards.

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation.

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160.

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted.

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days. 

FINDINGS

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.
The proposed garage addition at 4980 Garnet would not comply with the setback 
standards of the Zoning Ordinance, but special circumstances exist in relation with
reduced front yard setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of 
an additional 12 feet of unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from 
the street, and the predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.
The proposed garage addition and enclosure will slightly modify the character of the 
neighborhood by bringing the garage closer to the street. However, the conversion from 
a carport to a garage will better complement the existing character and form of the 
neighborhood by eliminating the presence of carports within this block of Garnet Street. 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – February 4, 2016 4

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301-E of the California    
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations.
This project involves the addition to an existing single-family residence and a garage 
enclosure in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. Section 15301-E of the 
CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing homes in a residential zone.

D. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application 
of this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification;
There are special circumstances applicable to the property in relation with reduced front 
yard setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of an additional 
12-feet of unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from the street, and 
the predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

E. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which subject property is situated.
The grant of a variance permit to front setbacks would not constitute the grant of a 
special privilege. There are at least 12 other properties on Garnet Street that similarly 
do not meet current front-yard setback requirements. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0]

MOVER: Gayle Ortiz, Commissioner

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner

AYES: Ortiz, Newman, Welch, Westman

RECUSED: Smith

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



S T A F F  R E P O R T 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2016

SUBJECT: 4980 Garnet St #15-181 APN: 034-043-16

Design Permit and Variance request for a garage addition to be located in the front yard setback 
area of an existing residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: David Aaron 
Representative: Chris Sandman, filed 11/4/15

APPLICANT PROPOSAL
The application is for a remodel at 4980 Garnet Street. The existing two-story home is located in 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. The existing home is not listed on Capitola’s 
2005 Historic Structures List. The remodel includes converting the existing two car carport into 
a garage, replacing the existing decks with smaller decks, and creating a new entryway along 
the front elevation (Attachment 1). The applicant is seeking a variance to extend the proposed 
garage six feet into the required 20 feet front yard setback.  The remodel also includes
modifications to window and door placement to create increased privacy along the side 
elevations and an updated appearance of the front elevation. 

BACKGROUND
The above matter was reviewed by the Architectural and Site Review Committee on November 
18th, 2015.  The following direction was provided to the applicant in regards to the original 
proposal: 

• City Public Works representative, Danielle Uharriet, requested that the applicant submit 
storm water calculations, clarify the type and location of impervious materials, obtain a 
Revocable Encroachment Permit for landscaping in the right-of-way, and disconnect 
downspouts. 

• City Building Official, Brian Van Son, explained that egress rules must be met on the 
window on the north side of the second story bedroom and that the eastern second-story 
wall will need to be fire-rated. 

• City Architect Representative, Frank Phanton, recommended that the applicant move the 
new entrance area behind the garage.  

• City Landscape Architect Representative, Craig Walsh, had no comments.
• City Planner, Ryan Safty, explained that the driveway approach proposal is 20 feet wide 

and the maximum allowed is 40% of property width (16 feet), the shed on the first floor 
should be labeled “existing” on the site plan, the application requires a an 80% non-

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



conforming calculation, the proposed extension of the front deck does not comply with 
code, and the new entry wall must be 15 feet back from the property line to comply with 
the front yard setback.  

Following the Architectural and Site Review meeting, the applicant submitted storm water 
calculations and obtained a revocable encroachment permit for landscape work in the right-of-
way from the Public Works Department. The applicant submitted a “Construction Cost 
Breakdown” sheet to the Building Department, ensuring that the addition will not result in greater 
than an 80% increase to the structures value (Attachment 2). The applicant revised the site plan 
to clarify the type and location of impervious materials, reduced the driveway approach width to 
16 feet, labeled the first floor shed “existing”, reduced the front deck, and relocated the entryway 
to comply with the 15 foot front yard setback. 

ZONING SUMMARY
The following table outlines the zoning code requirements for development in the R-1(Single 
Family Residential) Zoning District relative to the application.  

R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District
Development Standards

Building Height R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed

25'-0" 22’-11” 22’-11”

Floor Area Ratio (FAR)

Lot Size 3,200 sq. ft.

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 57% (Max 1,824 sq. ft.)

First Story Floor Area 468 sq. ft. 507  sq. ft.

Carport/ Garage Area 390 sq. ft. 440 sq. ft.

Second Story Floor Area 858 sq. ft. 858 sq. ft.

Second Story Decks
(first 150 sq.ft. of second story decks do not count towards FAR)

386 sq. ft.
(-150sq. ft.)
= 236 sq. ft. 

158 sq. ft. 
(-150 sq. ft.)  

= 8 sq. ft.

 TOTAL FAR 1,952 sq. ft. 1,813 sq. ft.

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way)

R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 19 ft. 15.6 ft.

Front Yard  Garage 20 ft. 19 ft.  
Existing Non-
Conforming

14 ft. 
Variance 

Requested

Front Yard  2nd Story 20 ft. 19 ft.           
Existing Non-
Conforming

19 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

Front Yard  2nd Story Deck 20 ft. 13 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

13 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

Side Yard 1st Story 10% lot 
width

Lot width 40
4 ft. min.

4.6 ft.  (Right)

5.5 ft  (Left)

4.6 ft.  (Right)

5.5 ft  (Left)

Side Yard 2nd Story 15% of 
width

Lot width 40      
6 ft. min

4.6ft.  (Right)
Ex. non-conforming

9 ft. (Left)

4.6 ft. (Right)
Ex. non-conforming

9 ft. (Left)

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% of lot Lot depth 80 27.6 ft 27.6 ft 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



depth 16 ft. min.

Rear Yard 2nd Story 20% of lot 
depth

Lot depth 80     
16 ft. min

28 ft. 28 ft. 

Rear Yard 2nd Story                           
-Stairs-

10 ft. 28 ft. 15 ft.

Encroachments: Water Heater Shed 
(side yard)

Encroaches 2 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

Encroaches 2 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

2nd Story Deck into front 
yard

Encroaches 6 ft. 
Existing Non-
conforming

Encroaches 6 ft. 
Existing Non-
conforming

Parking

Required Existing Proposed

Residential (from 1,501 
up to 2,000 sq. ft.)

2 spaces total:
1 covered 
1 uncovered

2 uncovered 2 covered

Underground Utilities: required with 25% increase 
in area

N/A 

DISCUSSION
The applicant is proposing to convert an existing carport into a two-car garage. The existing 
carport is only 15 feet deep when the code requires 20, and is thus undersized. The applicant is 
proposing to extend the garage five feet forward, converting the undersized carport into a full-
sized two-car garage.  A variance is required to extend the garage into the required front yard 
setback. 

Adjacent to the garage, the applicant is proposing an entryway leading to the side patio area.  
The entry wall contains a front door, vertical “fir” siding, stone pillars, and a gable roof design to 
match the existing home and give the appearance of an enclosed front entrance. Additionally
the remodel includes modifications to window and door placement to create increased privacy 
along the side elevations and an updated look on the front elevation.  

Lastly, the applicant is proposing to modify the design of the exterior stairways and second-story 
deck space. The front yard second-story deck is currently non-conforming, in that it is only 
setback 13 feet when 20 are required (§17.15.130). The applicant is proposing to reduce the 
size of the deck from 156 to 104 square feet, but continue the non-conforming setback at 13 
feet. The rear yard deck will be reduced from 230 to 54 square feet.  In total, the second-story 
deck space would be reduced by 228 square feet. 

Parking
The existing setbacks and parking at 4980 Garnet Street are non-conforming pursuant to 
section 17.15.130 of the Capitola Municipal Code. The existing 1,813 square foot home is 
required to have two parking spaces, one of which must be covered. Currently, the applicant 
has room for two full-size 18 feet by 10 feet uncovered parking spaces in the 19 foot deep 
driveway. Since the home is located in a sidewalk exempt area, the required length for 
uncovered parking spaces is reduced from 20 feet to 18. However, the existing 15 foot deep 
carport is undersized and therefore the applicant currently has no compliant covered parking 
spaces on-site. Additionally, front yard setbacks to garages are required to have 20 feet. The 
existing carport is located 19 feet from the property line and is non-conforming.

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



The applicant is proposing two covered parking spaces within the garage by extending the front 
elevation of the first story five feet forward.  The additional five feet decreases the existing front 
yard from 19 feet to 14 feet.  Although the plan would create two full sized covered parking 
spaces, the new garage would increase the existing non-conforming front yard setback.  The 
uncovered parking spaces in the front of the home will decrease from 19 feet to 14 feet in depth.  
It should be noted that there is an additional 12 feet of unutilized right of way between the 
property line and the curb.  As proposed, the garage will be located 26 feet from the curb. 

The Municipal Code requires minimum parking requirements be met with an increase of 10% to 
the existing floor area of the home. In total, the applicant is proposing to remove 139 square feet 
of floor area on the property and is therefore not required to meet minimum parking as a part of 
this remodel. However, the application as proposed will bring the site into compliance with two 
onsite covered parking spaces.  

Variance
The applicant is requesting a variance to allow the new garage to further encroach into the front 
yard setback area.  Pursuant to §17.66.090, the Planning Commission may grant a variance 
permit when it finds:

A. There are special circumstances applicable to subject property, including size, 
shape, topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of this title is found to 
deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and 
under identical zone classification.

B. That the grant of a variance permit would not constitute a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which 
subject property is situated.  

The property at 4980 Garnet Street is a regular-shaped, flat lot.  Properties within the block are 
generally of similar size. There are no special circumstances applicable to the lot related to the 
size, shape, or topography. 

The applicant is requesting a variance due to the current built conditions within the property.  
The applicant considered extending the interior wall of the carport four feet into the existing 
home but found this alternative would cause major changes to the internal layout of the home 
due to the staircase location behind the wall of the carport.  The bedrooms on the bottom and 
top floor would be impacted.  The proposed minor remodel would become a major remodel if 
they were required to relocate the internal staircase. The applicant is requesting the variance to 
maintain the staircase location and the existing internal layout of the home. 

The Planning Commission could find that the grant of a variance permit would not constitute a 
special privilege inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity.   From a 
cursory review, staff found that there are other properties within this neighborhood that do not 
meet the front yard setback requirements (Attachment 3). Staff was able to locate 12 properties 
along Garnet Street that do not meet the required front yard setbacks. Staff also observed that 
the home at 4980 Garnett Street is the only home within this block that has a carport rather than 
a garage.  The proposed remodel would update the property with a more compatible aesthetic 
form to the existing homes within the block. 

Although there are not special circumstances applicable to the subject property, other properties 
in the vicinity and under identical zoning do enjoy privileges of decreased front yard setbacks.  If 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



a variance were granted by the Planning Commission, the analysis would support that this is not 
a grant of special privileges.  Staff recommends Planning Commission approve of the variance 
due to the existing non-conforming setbacks throughout Garnet Street, the presence of 12 
additional feet of unutilized right of way between the property line and the curb, and because the 
garage enclose will complement the existing character of the neighborhood. 

CEQA REVIEW
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures. This project 
involves the enclosure of a garage in the front-setback area of an existing home in the R-1 
(Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered 
during review of the proposed project. 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #15-181 and associated 
variance request, based on the following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 

CONDITIONS

1. The project approval consists of a garage enclosure, deck remodel, and variance to front 
yard setback requirements to an existing single-family home. The maximum Floor Area 
Ratio for the 3,200 square foot property is 57% (1,824 square feet).  The total FAR of the 
project is 56.6% with a total of 1,813 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR 
within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on February 4th, 2016, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing.

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans. 

4. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm 
Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated 
as a sheet into the construction plans. All construction shall be done in accordance with 
Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).  

5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.  

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit # 15-181 
shall be paid in full.

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.  

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection.

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID).

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan. 
Erosion and sediment control shall be installed prior to the commencement of 
construction and maintained throughout the duration of the construction project. 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way.

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards.

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation.

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160.

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted.

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days. 

FINDINGS

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.
The proposed garage addition at 4980 Garnet would not comply with the setback standards 
of the Zoning Ordinance, but special circumstances exist in relation with reduced front yard 
setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of an additional 12-feet of 
unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from the street, and the 
predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.
The proposed garage addition and enclosure will slightly modify the character of the 
neighborhood by bringing the garage closer to the street. However, the conversion from a 
carport to a garage will better complement the existing character and form of the 
neighborhood by eliminating the presence of carports within this block of Garnet Street. 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301-E of the California    
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations.
This project involves the addition to an existing single-family residence and a garage 
enclosure in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. Section 15301-E of the 
CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing homes in a residential zone.

D. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application of 
this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification;
There are special circumstances applicable to the property in relation with reduced front 
yard setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of an additional 12-
feet of unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from the street, and the 
predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

E. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which subject property is situated.
The grant of a variance permit to front setbacks would not constitute the grant of a special 
privilege. There are at least 12 other properties on Garnet Street that similarly do not meet 
current front yard setback requirements. 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Project Plans
2. Permissable Structural Alterations

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



3. Neighborhood Setback Survey
4. Variance Request

Prepared By: Ryan Safty
Assistant Planner

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



4040 4040

2
61

6

WH
UP

UP

UP

1
4

'-
1

"

5'-0"

4'-8"

3
1

'-
5

"1
5

'-
7

1
/4

"

3
0

'-
0

"
1

9
'-
1

"

G A R N E T S T R E E T
60' R/W

C

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷ ïÍÌ
ÚÔÎ ÙßÎßÙÛ

ÉßÔÔ ú îÒÜ ÚÔÎ
ÉßÔÔ ßÞÑÊÛ

(E) CURB
& GUTTER

(E
)

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

CONCRETE FILL
INDICATES (P) 267
SQFT PERMEABLE
PAVER STAMPED
CONCRETE

ÍòÞò

ÍòÞò

øÛ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò

øÐ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

òÌ
Ñ

Ù
ß

Ì
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ÷ ê ÚÑÑÌ ÎÜÉÜ ÚÛÒÝÛ

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ìðù ÐòÔò

ìðù ÐòÔò

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ß
Ü

Ü
×Ì

×Ñ
Ò

Û
È

×ÍÌ
×Ò

Ù

øÐ÷ ÛÒÌÎÇ
ÉßÔÔ

øÛ÷ ÐÑÉÛÎ
ÐÑÔÛ

R
/W

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ Ú×ÔÔ
×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ îìë ÍÏÚÌ

×ÓÐÛÎÊ×ÑËÍ øÛ÷
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

øÛ÷ ÎÑÝÕ
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÐ÷
ÔßÒÜ×ÒÙ

ßÞÑÊÛ

ØÑÎ×ÆÑÒÌßÔ ØßÌÝØ
×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ øÐ÷ ÐÛÎÓÛßÞÔÛ ìîç
ÍÏÚÌ ÜÛÝÕ ä íðþ ßÞÑÊÛ ÙÎßÜÛ

(E) MONUMENT

Î
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ

ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ

ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

øÛ÷ ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ
ÌÑ ÞÛ

ÜÛÓÑÔ×ÍØÛÜ

ANGL HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 200
SQFT CONCRETE.

REPLACE w/ LANDSCAPE

øÛ÷

øÐ÷ Í×ÔÊÛÎ
ÞËÍØ

øÐ÷ ÓÛÈ
ÍßÙÛ

øÐ÷ ×ÒÝÎÛßÍÛ É×ÜÌØ ÑÚ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ ÌÑ ïêù

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÌØ
ÑÚ ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÛ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ îðù
É×ÜÛ ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

øÛ÷ ÉßÌÛÎ
ØÛßÌÛÎ ÎÑÑÓ

ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

ÙßÌÛ

øÐ÷ ìÈê
ßÎÞÑÎ

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

CROSS BOX
INDICATES (E) 60
SQFT LANDSCAPE
TO BE REMOVED

øÛ
÷

Ú
Ç

ÍÞ

øÐ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò
Ì

Ñ
Ù

ß
Î

ß
Ù

Û

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷
îÒÜ ÚÔÎ ÜÛÝÕ
ÝßÒÌ×ÔÛÊÛÎ

øÐ÷ êù
ÉÑÑÜ
ÚÛÒÝÛ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÐ÷
îÒÜ ÚÔÎ ÜÛÝÕ
ÝßÒÌ×ÔÛÊÛÎ

BUILDING OCCUPANCY GROUP:
R-3/U

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION:
TYPE VB

STORIES: TWO

TOTAL FLOOR AREA:

ENERGY METHOD: N/A

SPRINKLER SYSTEM: NON-SPRINKLERED

FIRE RET. ROOFING: CLASS B

GEOTECH REPORT: N/A

CODE EDITION:
2013 CA BUILDING CODE of REGULATIONS TITLE 24

2013 CA BUILDING 1 & 2 CODE
2013 CA RESIDENTIAL CODE
2013 CA MECHANICAL CODE
2013 CA ELECTRICAL CODE
2013 CA PLUMBING CODE

2013 CA FIRE CODE
2013 CA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE
2013 CA ENERGY CODE

ÎÛÚÛÎÛÒÝÛÜ ÍÌßÒÜßÎÜÍ

ßÔÔ ×ÒÚÑÎÓßÌ×ÑÒ ÎÛÔßÌ×ÒÙ ÌÑ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ
ÝÑÒÍÌÎËÝÌ×ÑÒ ×Í Ù×ÊÛÒ ßÍ ÞÛ×ÒÙ ÌØÛ ÞÛÍÌ
×ÒÚÑÎÓßÌ×ÑÒ ßÊß×ÔßÞÔÛò ÌØÛ ÝÑÒÌÎßÝÌÑÎ
ÍØßÔÔ ÊÛÎ×ÚÇ ßÔÔ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝÑÒÜ×Ì×ÑÒÍô
Ü×ÓÛÒÍ×ÑÒÍ ßÒÜ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜßÌËÓÍ ßÌ ÌØÛ ÖÑÞ
Í×ÌÛò ßÒÇ Ü×ÍÝÎÛÐßÒÝ×ÛÍ ÎÛÏË×Î×ÒÙ
ÓÑÜ×Ú×ÝßÌ×ÑÒÍ ÌÑ ÌØÛ ÝÑÒÍÌÎËÝÌ×ÑÒ
ÜÑÝËÓÛÒÌÍ ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ ÎÛÐÑÎÌÛÜ ÌÑ ÌØÛ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ
ÜÛÍ×ÙÒÛÎ ×ÓÓÛÜ×ßÌÛÔÇò ÒÑ ÓÑÜ×Ú×ÝßÌ×ÑÒÍ ÍØßÔÔ
ÞÛ ÓßÜÛ ÞÇ ÌØÛ ÝÑÒÌÎßÝÌÑÎ É×ÌØÑËÌ
ßÐÐÎÑÊßÔ ÞÇ ÌØÛ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒÛÎò

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝÑÒÜ×Ì×ÑÒÍ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô ÝßÔ×ÚÑÎÒ×ß çëððí
ÐØÑÒÛ èíïó íìëóêèçî
ÛÓß×Ôæ ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÝØÎ×ÍÌÑÐØÛÎ ÍßÒÜÓßÒ

CONSULTANTS:

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒÛÎæ

TOTALS

FLOOR AREA RATIO

PARCEL SIZE

GARAGE / CARPORT

EXISTING PROPOSED

RESIDENCE @ 1ST LEVEL

ßÎÛß ÝßÔÝËÔßÌ×ÑÒÍ

A.P.N.

APPLICANT

LOT AREA

ALLOWABLE LOT COVERAGE

LOT COVERAGE

COVERED PATIO / PORCH

UNHEATED STORAGE

CANTILVER >18" ABOVE GRADE

DECKS >18" ABOVE GRADE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE IN %

CONVERT (UNHEATED) (E)

WORKSHOP TO LIVING RM

1ST FLOOR (ENCLOSED)

FLOOR AREA (UNHEATED)

GARAGE AREA (-225 SQFT)

PORCH AREA (MINUS 1ST

140 SQFT+ 1/2 OF ALL

COVERED PORCH)

FLOOR AREA RATIO

2ND FLOOR (ENCLOSED)

TOTALS

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ÍÝßÔÛ ïñèþã ïùóðþ

ïîóðéóïë

A A R O N R E S I D E N C E
4980 GARNET STREET CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA 95010

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

ßï

A.P.N. 034-043-16

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ÜÛÍÝÎ×ÐÌ×ÑÒæ

Ê×Ý×Ò×ÌÇ ÓßÐ

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

DEMOLISH (E) WEST STORAGE

ÒòÌòÍò

óïï ÍÏÚÌ

SUB TOTAL

ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ

(E) WEST STORAGE é ÍÏÚÌ

ïè ÍÏÚÌ

ðíìóðìíóïê

ÍØÛÛÌ ×ÒÜÛÈ
ßï÷ ÝÑÊÛÎ ÍØÛÛÌô Í×ÌÛ ÐÔßÒô Ê×Ý×Ò×ÌÇ ÓßÐ

ßÎÛß ÝßÔÝËÔßÌ×ÑÒÍ

ßî÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ ïÍÌ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

ßí÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ îÒÜ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

ßì÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÍ

ßë÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÍ

ßê÷ ÜÎß×ÒßÙÛ ÐÔßÒ

ßé÷ ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ í ÜùÍñÝÑÔÑÎ ÞÑßÎÜ

óïï ÍÏÚÌ

íîðð ÍÏÚÌ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ÜßÌßæ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ßÜÜÎÛÍÍæ
ìçèð ÙßÎÒÛÌ ÍÌÎÛÛÌ
ÝßÐ×ÌÑÔßô Ýß çëðïð

ßÍÍÛÍÍÑÎùÍ ÐßÎÝÛÔ ÒËÓÞÛÎæ
ðíìóðìíóïê

ÑÉÒÛÎ ÝÑÒÌßÝÌ ×ÒÚÑÎÓßÌ×ÑÒæ
ÜßÊ×Ê ú ÜÛÞ ßßÎÑÒ
ìçèð ÙßÎÒÛÌ ÍÌÎÛÛÌ
ìðèóíçêóïêíï
æ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ
ÔÑÝßÌ×ÑÒ

ìêè ÍÏÚÌ

íçð ÍÏÚÌ ëð ÍÏÚÌ

íð ÍÏÚÌ

ïîêî ÍÏÚÌ óíïè ÍÏÚÌ

çìì ÍÏÚÌ

îçòëðû

íîðð ÍÏÚÌ

ìêè ÍÏÚÌ íð ÍÏÚÌ

>30"

èëè ÍÏÚÌ

DECK: (E) 386 SQFT- 228 SQFT= (P) 158 SQFT- 150 SQFT CREDIT= 8 SQFT

íçð ÍÏÚÌ

ÉòÝò ÎÑÑÓ

çé ÍÏÚÌïéîí ÍÏÚÌ

GARAGE

îð ÍÏÚÌ

ïèîð ÍÏÚÌ

ëêòèéû

íèê ÍÏÚÌ óîîè ÍÏÚÌ

ëð ÍÏÚÌ

ÙÎÙ ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍßÔ ÌÑ ÑÞÌß×Ò ß ÊßÎ×ßÒÝÛ ÌÑ ßÜÜ
ëù¨îîù ÑÒÌÑ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝßÎÐÑÎÌ
ßÐÐÎÑÈ×ÓßÌÛÔÇ ê ÚÛÛÌ ×ÒÌÑ ÚÎÑÒÌ ÇßÎÜ
ÍÛÌÞßÝÕ ÎÛÍËÔÌ×ÒÙ ×Ò ß ììð ÍÏÚÌ îóÝßÎ
ÙßÎßÙÛò ÍÝÑÐÛ ÑÚ ÉÑÎÕ ÌÑ ×ÒÝÔËÜÛ ß
Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔô ÔÑÉÛÎ ÞßÌØ
ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔñßÜÜ×Ì×ÑÒ ú ßÜÜ ÝÔÑÍÛÌ ×Ò ïÍÌ
ÚÔÑÑÎ ÍÑËÌØÉÛÍÌ ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ÜÛÍÝÎ×ÐÌ×ÑÒæ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍßÔ ÌÑ ÑÞÌß×Ò ß ÊßÎ×ßÒÝÛ ÌÑ ßÜÜ
ëù¨îîù ÑÒÌÑ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝßÎÐÑÎÌ
ßÐÐÎÑÈ×ÓßÌÛÔÇ ê ÚÛÛÌ ×ÒÌÑ ÚÎÑÒÌ ÇßÎÜ
ÍÛÌÞßÝÕ ÎÛÍËÔÌ×ÒÙ ×Ò ß ììð ÍÏÚÌ îóÝßÎ
ÙßÎßÙÛò ÍÝÑÐÛ ÑÚ ÉÑÎÕ ÌÑ ×ÒÝÔËÜÛ ß
Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔô ÔÑÉÛÎ ÞßÌØ
ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔñßÜÜ×Ì×ÑÒ ú ßÜÜ ÝÔÑÍÛÌ ×Ò ïÍÌ
ÚÔÑÑÎ ÍÑËÌØÉÛÍÌ ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

Í×ÌÛ ÐÔßÒ

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



4040 4040

2
6

1
6

WH
UP

UP

UP

ëîð ¯ º¬

4
'-
6

"
7

'-
6

"

33'-0"

1
3

'-
0

"

2'-11"

4'-0"

3
'-

5
3

/4
"

2
0

'-0
"

22'-0"

12'-9 1/2"

1
2

'-
7

1
/2

"

10'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

ÙßÎßÙÛ

ØßÔÔ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÞßÌØ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷ ÙßÎßÙÛ
ÉßÔÔ ú ÉßÔÔ ßÞÑÊÛ

ËÌ×Ô×ÌÇ

ØßÔÔ

ÍÌ
Ñ

Î
ß

Ù
Û

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÜÛÝÕ

øÐ÷ ÜÛÝÕ ä íðþ ßÞÑÊÛ ÙÎßÜÛ

øÐ
÷

Ì
Î

Û
ÔÔ

×Í

ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ

øÛ÷ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÐ÷
ÜÛÝÕ ßÞÑÊÛ

ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

ÜÛÝÕ

ÜÛÝÕ

UP
8

0
'-
0

"

40'-0"

8
0

'-
0

"

40'-0"

UP

ìêì ¯ º¬

7
'-
1

1
/4

"

1
4

'-
6

1
/2

"

10'-4"

1
0

'-
1

0
3

/4
"

26'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

1
5

'-
0

"

12'-8 1/2"

3
3

'-0
"

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

ÙßÎßÙÛ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

øÛ÷ É×ÒÜÑÉá

ÝÔÑÍÛÌÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÞßÌØ ØßÔÔ

ØßÔÔ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÉßÔÔÍ

ßÔÌÛÎÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÉßÔÔ ÔÛÙÛÒÜ

ÌÑ ÞÛ ÎÛÓÑÊÛÜ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

ßî

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

LINE OF
DECK ABOVE

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

REMOVE (E) 340 SQFT CONCRETE
SLAB & ADD (P) DECK

REMOVE (E)
STORAGE SQFT

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"
ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ïÍÌ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ïÍÌ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



DN

REF.

8
0
'-

0
"

40'-0"

8
0
'-

0
"

40'-0"

èïî ¯ º¬

26'-0"

6
'-
0

"

1
0

'-
0

"

23'-1 7/16"

9
'-

0
"

1
0

'-
0

"

ÑÐÛÒ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÜÛÝÕ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ

ØßÔÔ

ÚßÓ×ÔÇ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞßÌØ

ÔßËÒÜÎÇ
ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷

É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÜÛÝÕ

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

DN

3
0
3

0
3

0
3

0

4040

R
E

F
.

D
/W

èïî ¯ º¬

9'-4"

1
3

'-
0

"
1

4
'-
1

1
"

1
9

'-
1

"

4'-8"

18'-0"

5
'-
0

"

4'-0" 4'-0"

3
'-
4

"

10'-3 1/2"

16'-0"

1
0

'-
0

"

ÑÐÛÒ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷ êù¨ìù

Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ

ØßÔÔ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞßÌØ

ÔßËÒÜÎÇ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ ÜÛÝÕ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌÞßÌØ

ÚßÓ×ÔÇ

ÜÛÝÕ

ÐßÒÌÎÇ

ÜÛÝÕ

ÍÕÇÔÌ ÍÕÇÔÌ

ÍÕÇÔÌÍÕÇÔÌ

ÍÕÇÔÌ

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÉßÔÔÍ

ßÔÌÛÎÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÉßÔÔ ÔÛÙÛÒÜ

ÌÑ ÞÛ ÎÛÓÑÊÛÜ

ÒÑÌÛæ ÎÛÏË×ÎÛÜ Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ É×ÒÜÑÉ Í×ÆÛ ú
ÛÓÛÎÙÛÒÝÇ ÛÍÝßÐÛò îðïð ÝÎÝ Í»½¬·±² Îíïð
ÞßÍÛÓÛÒÌô ØßÞ×ÌßÞÔÛ ßÌÌ×ÝÍ ßÒÜ ÛÊÛÎÇ ÍÔÛÛÐ×ÒÙ ÎÑÑÓ
ÍØßÔÔ ØßÊÛ ßÌ ÔÛßÍÌ ÑÒÛ ÑÐÛÎßÞÔÛ É×ÒÜÑÉ ÑÎ ÜÑÑÎ
ßÐÐÎÑÊÛÜ ÚÑÎ ÛÓÛÎÙÛÒÝÇ ÛÍÝßÐÛ ÑÎ ÎÛÍÝËÛ ÌØßÌ ÍØßÔÔ
ÑÐÛÒ Ü×ÛÝÌÔÇ ×ÒÌÑ ß ÐËÞÔ×Ý ÍÌÎÛÛÌô ÐËÞÔ×Ý ßÔÔÛÇô ÇßÎÜ ÑÎ
ÛÈ×Ì ÝÑËÎÌò ÌØÛ ÛÓÛÎÙÛÒÝÇ ÜÑÑÎ ÑÎ É×ÒÜÑÉ ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ
ÑÐÛÎßÞÔÛ ÚÎÑÓ ÌØÛ ×ÒÍ×ÜÛ ÌÑ ÐÎÑÊ×ÜÛ ß ÚËÔÔô ÝÔÛßÎ
ÑÐÛÒ×ÒÙ É×ÌØÑËÌ ÌØÛ ËÍÛ ÑÚ ÍÛÐßÎßÌÛ ÌÑÑÔÍò

¢ ÛÍÝßÐÛ ÑÎ ÎÛÍÝËÛ É×ÒÜÑÉÍ ÍØßÔÔ ØßÊÛ ß Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ
ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒßÞÔÛ ßÎÛß ÑÚ ëòé ÍÏÚÌò

ø ÛÈÝÛÐÌ ßÌ ÙÎßÜÛ ÚÔÑÑÎô ÍØßÔÔ ØßÊÛ ß Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ
ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒ×ÒÙ ÑÚ ë ÍÏÚÌ÷
¢ ÌØÛ Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒßÞÔÛ ØÛ×ÙØÌ Ü×ÓÛÒÍ×ÑÒ
ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ îì ×ÒÝØÛÍò
¢ ÌØÛ Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒßÞÔÛ É×ÜÌØ Ü×ÓÛÒÍ×ÑÒ
ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ îð ×ÒÝØÛÍò
¢ Ú×Ò×ÍØÛÜ Í×ÔÔ ØÛ×ÙØÌ ÍØßÔÔ ÒÑÌ ÞÛ ÓÑÎÛ ÌØßÒ ìì ×ÒÝØÛÍ
ßÞÑÊÛ ÌØÛ ÚÔÑÑÎò

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ îÒÜ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ
scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ îÒÜ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

ßí

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



î
î

ùó
ïï

þ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÒÑÎÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÒÑÎÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÛßÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÛßÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

ßì

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

REQUIRED 2ND
FLOOR FIRE WALL

ASSEMBLY

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

REQUIRED 2ND
FLOOR FIRE WALL
ASSEMBLY

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÉÛÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÉÛÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"
ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÍÑËÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÍÑËÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

ßë

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



WH
UP

UP

UP

1
4

'-
1

"1
9

'-
1

"

2
8

'-1
"

4'-8"

1
5

'-
8

"

3
0

'-
0

"

DS DS

DS

DS

G A R N E T S T R E E T
R/W 60'

C

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷
ÙßÎßÙÛ ÉßÔÔ ú

ÉßÔÔ ßÞÑÊÛ

(E) CURB
& GUTTER

(E
)

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

CONCRETE FILL
INDICATES (P) 267 SQFT
PERMEABLE PAVER
STAMPED CONCRETE

ÍòÞò

øÛ
÷

Úò
Ç

òÍ
òÞ

ò

øÐ
÷

Úò
Ç

òÍ
òÞ

ò
Ì

Ñ
Ù

ß
Ì

Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ÷ ê ÚÑÑÌ ÎÜÉÜ ÚÛÒÝÛ

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ìðù ÐòÔò

ìðù ÐòÔò

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ß
Ü

Ü
×Ì

×Ñ
Ò

Û
È

×Í
Ì

×Ò
Ù

øÐ÷ ÛÒÌÎÇ
ÉßÔÔ

øÛ÷ ÐÑÉÛÎ
ÐÑÔÛ

R
/W

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

ßÒÙÔÛ ØßÌÝØ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
îíë ÍÏÚÌ ×ÓÐÛÎÊ×ÑËÍ øÛ÷
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

øÛ÷ ÎÑÝÕ
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

ØÑÎ×ÆÑÒÌßÔ ØßÌÝØ
×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ øÐ÷ ÐÛÎÓÛßÞÔÛ ìîç
ÍÏÚÌ ÜÛÝÕ ä íðþ ßÞÑÊÛ ÙÎßÜÛ

(E) MONUMENT

Î
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ
ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ

ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

øÛ÷ ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ
ÌÑ ÞÛ

ÜÛÓÑÔ×ÍØÛÜ

ANGL HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 200
SQFT CONCRETE.

REPLACE w/ LANDSCAPE

øÛ÷

øÐ÷ Í×ÔÊÛÎ
ÞËÍØ

øÐ÷ ÓÛÈ
ÍßÙÛ

øÐ÷ ×ÒÝÎÛßÍÛ É×ÜÌØ ÑÚ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ ÌÑ ïêù

øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÌØ ÑÚ ÜñÉ
ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÛ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ îðù
É×ÜÛ ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

øÛ÷ ÉßÌÛÎ
ØÛßÌÛÎ ÎÑÑÓ

ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÍÐÔßÍØ ÞÔÑÝÕ ú
Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

ANGLE HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 364 SQFT
DEMOLISHED CONCRETE

CROSS BOX
INDICATES (E) 60
SQFT LANDSCAPE
TO BE REMOVED

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÍÐÔßÍØ ÞÔÑÝÕ ú
Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÉßÔÕÉßÇ ú

Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

øÐ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÍÐÔßÍØ ÞÔÑÝÕ ú
Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ

øÐ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò
Ì

Ñ
Ù

ß
Î

ß
Ù

Û

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÉßÔÕÉßÇ ú

Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ

ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ

ïþ ÝÎÑÉÒ ×Ò ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇò
Ü×ÎÛÝÌ ÍØÛÛÌ ÚÔÑÉ ÎËÒó
ÑÚÚ ÑÒ ÌÑ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ à
ÛßÝØ Í×ÜÛ ÑÚ ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ

ÒßÌËÎßÔ ÙÎßÜÛ

ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ Ó×Òòíòëþ
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ É×ÌØ ëþ ÑÚ ÝÔßÍÍ î
ßÙÙÎÛÙßÌÛ ÞßÍÛ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ ÝÎÑÍÍ ÍÛÝÌ×ÑÒ ÒÑ ÍÝßÔÛ

DS

ÜÎß×ÒßÙÛ ÔÛÙÛÒÜ

ÐÎÑÐÛÎÌÇ Ô×ÒÛ

ÒÑÌÛæßÔÔ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌÍ ÍØßÔÔ
Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛ ÑÒÌÑ ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÍÐÔßÍØ
ÞÔÑÝÕÍ ßÒÜ ÐÛÎÓÛßÌÛ ×ÒÌÑ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛò

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ú Ú×ÒßÔ
ÜÎß×ÒßÙÛ ÐßÌÌÛÎÒ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÐÛÎÓÛßÞÔÛ
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

ßê

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

ÝÑÔÑÎÍ ú ÓßÌÛÎ×ßÔÍ

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

ï÷ ÞÑÜÇ ÝÑÔÑÎæ Ô×ÙØÌ ÚÎÛÒÝØ ÞÔËÛ

î÷ ÌÎ×Ó ÝÑÔÑÎæ ÐËÎÛ ÉØ×ÌÛ

í÷ ÑÙÛÛ ÙËÌÌÛÎæ ÜÑÊÛÎ ÉØ×ÌÛ

ì÷ ÎÑÑÚ×ÒÙæ øÛ÷ ÙÎßÇ ÝÔßÍÍ ùÞù ÝÑÓÐ ÍØ×ÒÙÔÛÍ

ë÷ ÚÎÑÒÌ ÜÑÑÎæ ÓßØÑÙßÒÇ ÍÌß×ÒÛÜ ÉÑÑÜ

ê÷ É×ÒÜÑÉÍæ ÉØ×ÌÛ Ê×ÒÇÔ Ó×ÔÙËßÎÜ

é÷ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÚÛÒÝÛæ ËÒÌÎÛßÌÛÜ ÎÛÜÉÑÑÜ

è÷ ÎÑÝÕ ÐÑÍÌ ÞßÍÛæ ÝÑËÒÌÎÇ ÔÛÜÙÛÍÌÑÒÛ

ç÷ ÜÛÝÕ Îß×Ô×ÒÙæ ì¨ì ÎÜÉÜ ÐÑÍÌÍ ©ñ ÝßÞÔÛ ÞßÔËÍÌÎßÜÛ

ïð÷ Í×ÜÛ ú ÎÛßÎ ÜÛÝÕ Îß×Ô×ÒÙÍæ ì¨ì ÎÜÉÜ ÐÑÍÌ ©ñ î¨î ÞßÔËÍÌÎßÜÛ

ïï÷ ÓßÌÝØ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ Ìïóïï Ú×Î Í×Ü×ÒÙ

ßé
ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÒÛ×ÙØÞÑÎØÑÑÜ ÍÛÌÞßÝÕÍ

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



12-3-15 

CADHOMES BVILDING DESIGN 
S08 SANTA MARGVARITA DRIVE 

APTOS. CA. 95003 
PHONE ~ 831-345-6891 -. T. , . 

CLIENT: D<lvld <lnd Deb A<lron 
4980 G<ltnet Street 
5qntt Ctuz. CA 95062 

PROJECT, A.Mitlon & tem<><lel to 4980 G,me! St. 

Construction Cost Bt'eakctown 

EXISTING WILDING COSTS· 

Existing Residence 1326 "lit @ 12oo/sqlt 

Existing G<ll'qge 390 "lit @ 190/"l1t 

Existing D&k 386 "llt@ 125/"l1t 

Totol Existing V,lue 

80% Tot<ll Existing V<llue 

&EMO I2EI ,om 
1st Float G<ltage Ad(Utlon 110 "lit @ 190 

1st Floor B<lth (existing) 55 "lit @ 1100 

1st Floot B<lth (ptoposed) 30 "lit @ 1200 

1st f100t closet 19 "llt@ 1100 

1st f100t bedtoom 18 "lit @ 1100 

2n<t f100t closet/p<lntty 37 sqlt @ 1100 

2n<t f100t kitchen 118 sqlt @ 1300 

2n<t f100t ~milyhlinln9 370 "lit @ 1100 

t-teroove-fS-ttee 86-'5q~2j;/"l(; 

1st floot Pwposed Deck 429 "lit @ 125/sqlt 

2nd f100t Deck R.ep<llt 104 "lit @ 125/"lft 

IQ~I 32.77 % 

.<\PPROVED 

SIgned .... # ...... _ .. _ 
Date _ ..... /7L:-IIF..···· ·········· 
Pennit No..~tr.e).~ ........ ~ 

1265,200 

135,100 

19,650 

1309,950 

1247,960 

19,900 

15,500 

16,000 

11,900 

11,800 

13,700 

135,400 

i 37,000 

, 

110,725 

i 2,600 

-i4e4;8l-S- , 

C c*'II-I,s=-

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



11-25-15 

CADHOMES BVILDING DESIGN 
508 SANTA MARGVARITA DRIVE 

APTOS. CA, 95003 
PHONE ~ 831~345-6892 - , . 

CLIENT: Dqvlcl qncl Deb Aq~on 
4980 Gqrnet Street 
5qntt Cruz, CA 95062 

PROJECT, Addition & temodel to 4980 Gamet St. 

Construction Cost Brea ~own 

EKlm~~ IlMIII2I ~!:i: CQSIS· 

Existing R.eslclence 1326 sqFt @ $200/sqFt 

Existing G<tt'qge 390 sqFt @ $90/sqFt 

Existing Deck 386 sqFt @ $2S/sqFt 

Total Existing Value 

80% Tot<ll Existing V<tlue 

BEMQI2EI CQsn 

1" Floot Bath 112 sqFt@fl99l a<o 

1'" flom closet 19 sqFt @ $100 

1'" floor beclroom 18 sqFt @ $100 

2nd floor closet/p<tntty 37 sqFt @ $100 

2 nd floor kitchen 118 sqFt @il00- ..,~OO 

2"' floot ",mlly/dlnlng 370 sqFt @ $100 

TOrAl 21.74% 

$ 265,200 

$ 35,100 

$ 9,650 

$ 309,950 

$ 247,960 

i 11,200 

$1,900 

$1,800 

$ 3,700 

-f4+;SOO-
$ 37,000 

-1-&7;400-

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



January 28, 2016 

Katie Cattan 
Senior Planner 
City o f Capito la Planning Commiss ion 
420 Capitola Ave. 
Capito la, California 950 10 

.IA~ 2 B 1111 

(t T ( 

Re: Design Permit and Variance request fo r 4980 Garnet Street 
#15- 181 APN: 034-043- J6 

Dear Ms. Cattan: 

This letter is provided in support of our request fo r a Design Perm it and Variance for a garage 
add ition to be located in the front setback area of our home at 4980 Gamet Street. Our famil y 
has lived in Santa Cruz county for the past 11 years , and we purchased our home at 4980 Garnet 
Street to be our full time residence. We plan to invest a substanti al pOr1ion of Ollf savings in 
order to improve the appearance and functionality of the house, and to bring its condition up to 
mutch the condition of the olher homes in the neighborhood. The designs submitted in support 
of our Design Permit and Variance reflect a Cransman-style des ign appearance that is consistent 
with rhe character of the neighborhood. 

We plan 10 li ve in thi s house fo r ma ny years and be a part of this commun ity. We are not 
undertaking this eftort in order to rese ll for a profi t David works al a hi gb tech company in 
Sil icon Valley, and Deb is responsible fo r home schooling our daughter. We have walked 
around the neighborhood , and chose these design plans (5 foot encroachment , not greater) 
because we believe they conform with the overall aest hetic of the ne ighborhood. We believe our 
fam ily and the cOllllllunity will benefi t from the exte rior improvements 10 the hOllse. Our request 
is based on the fo ll owing circumstances: 

1. Variance Consistent with i-fOllses in Neighborhood. 

Other houses on Garnet Street, and the nearby Lincoln Avenue and Prospect Avenue, are already 
built in the fron t setback are'l . The Design Permit fllld Vnrinnce reql..lcsted is cons istent with 
what currently exists, so the expansion of our house in the £J·on! setback area wi ll not be unique 
in the neighborhood. The grant afOUl" requested variance would not be a special privilege 
inconsistent with other properties in the vicinity. Attached is an arerial photo showing the 
existing neighborhood sctbacks. Our hOl!Se is marked with a rcd .. X". The easement is 
calculated n·otllthe black line in the center of the street. and the setback calculated from the thin 
black line ("·Easement Line'·) that cuts across each propel1y. The setback is 20 feet from the thin 
black Easement Line. So, a property in compliance with code would be 20 fecI h~ck from the 
Easement Line. 

Al.rOll Design t'em.;1 mId Vminll~~ 
r~4'''''""S1 fur 4980 G:lm.:! .~Inxl 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



On our side ofGarnel Sireet there are threc structures that are built on or beyond the Easement 
Line, and which do not comply with the 20 foot setback requirement. On the opposite side of 
Garnet Street there arc two structu res buil d on or beyond the Easement Li ne, and which do not 
observe the 20 foot code setback. On Li ncoln A venue, there is onc long structure that is built 
across the Easement Line, tlml which docs not observe the 20 foot code setback. 0 11 Prospect 
Avenue, almost every ho use in the pictllre is built across the Easement Line (on ly two have 
arrows), and which do not observe Ihe 20 foot code setback. Ir we were 10 expand the photo to 
include other neighborhood streets, this same theme is repeated over and over. M<lny houses are 
buill on or across the Easement Li ne, ~Hld many others do not observe the 20 foot code setback. 

2. Benefit s to Ne ighborhood and Code Compliance. 

Updmes to the house provide benefits to adjoining neighbors: 

We are removing the second story windows at the fronl o f both sides of the house. 
which will improve privacy and reduce noise for neighbors on the east and west 
adjoini ng parcels. Currently. these windows a llen directly into the neighbor' s side 
yards and look direct ly into similarly placed willdows on both neighbors' houses. 

We are also removing the first floo r window all the back bedroo m on thc wes t 
side of our house. which will also dec rease noise and improve privacy fo r the west 
side adjoining neighbor. 

Our current front deck ex tends the length of the ti·ont of the house from the west 
10 east side o r the property. giving us a line of site view into our neighbor's yards on 
both sides, We are decreas ing the size of the front deck so that it does not ex tend to 
the outer edges of the property [l nd thereby improve privacy for both ncighbors. 

We arc removing the large cement drivewJ:lY in front of our h OllSC, and rcplac ing it 
with a permeable material wilh signifi cantl y smaller footp rint. This will reduce water 
runorr to the street and adj oin ing parcels. 

Our hOllse to lot size ratio is currcnt ly 39.43%, which is greater than the maximum 30% rat io 
under the current code. Olll· designs will bring the house to lot ratio down to 29.5%, and 
bringing it inlo conformance with current code requirements. 

3. Sule!y. 

Simply enclosing the existing carport will not provide adequate funct ionality or the safe 
environment that our family needs. If the existing carport ,-vere to be enclosed, there would be 
approximate ly 15 feet of length for a vchicle (180 inches). Qur current vch ide is a mid-size car 
Volkswagen Passot, wh ich is 188 inches in Icngth. Our CUtTen! car will simply not lit if"we 
enclose but not expand the carport. Even with a smaller car there would not be adequate room 
for ingress and egrcss around the \chicle to the house. While we have a mid-sized car at this 
point. it is likely thaI someday \ve will purchase a full sized cur. truck or SUV that will be closer 

, 
Amun Ix,ign Pcnni! am.l Vnriancc 

II:(IU~,! rUl' 49!1O Galnc( Slrec! 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



to 200 inches or longer. Even if a smaller car could be parked in the garage, the passengers 
wOll ld not be able to walk around the veh icle without the garage door being open. 

Addit ionally, this is where Ollr daughter's circumstances make the caI·porl or u smal l garage 
personally unsafe for her. Our daughter is diagnosed with Autism and she has sensory 
processing challenges, creating a unique set of spec ial circumstances for our family. She is 
extremely sensitive to noise, which carUlot be avo ided while driving in a car. Everyday noises 
like unexpected fi re sirens, barking dogs, loud truck engines, motorcycles, or any number of 
common sounds trigger a lear response in her. A simple drive to the market can send her into a 
panic, resulting in an inabi lity to make safe choices tor herself. One way to allow 
her to calm herself is to pClrk the car in the garage and si t quietly in the car until she is able to 

compose herself. Without having an enclosed garage. there is ri sk that she \vill run rrom the 
vehic le when we purk. And, if the garage is not long. enough to walk arOlllld ii, we will not be 
able to prevent her tendency to nm since the garage cloor would have to open to access the hOllse. 
We believe 1hat an additional 5 feet of garage length solves this 5<"llety ri sk in that we can safely 
park the car in the closed garage. 

4. Security. 

Allhough Capitola is a safe community, the conliglll"alioll of the current carport on the lot creales 
a security risk. The carport is divided in Ihree porI ions, with the west and east pOl1ions of the 
cll rport each hav ing space lor a vehicle 10 park. The center portion is an enclosed storage area 
thai separates Ihe 1wo parking spaces. The fron l door to the hOllse and an approximately 6 fOOl 
by 6 root ingress/egress <lren is behind the cnclosed storage area. This area behind the enclosed 
storage arca is covered and cannot be seen from the street, nor by a car as it approaches the 
carport. Having thi s unsecured are.-.-. that cannot be seen from the strcct creates a security risk for 
our family and visitors to our house because a persOIl could remain in that area undetected. By 
ene/osing the carport, we will eliminate th is securi ty ri sk. 

5. Tear Down Not Financially Viable Option. 

As discussed above. having an additional 5 fect added to the carport footprint is necessary for 
our fami ly. The olher option for the desired 20 foot gflrage is to add 5 feet of garage space in the 
oppos ite direct ion. Doing so would reqllire the demolition of the downstairs balhroom, the 
staircase 10 access the upstairs or the house, a portion of the two small bedrooms, as ..... ell as 
impact numerOllS sll"llclllml and load bearing wall s. It is also nol possible to expand in the rear 
direction of the house without crossing the rear setbacks. Our goal has been to enhance the 
existing home 101, while also complying with the city' s code requirements. Ilowever. it is not 
financiall y viable to lear dO\\lIthe structure, <lnd fe-des ign the house to compl y with our goals 
and the current code. 

We be lieve that the proposed addit ional 5 fee l of length to the garage \\ill crcale onl y minimal 
impact on adjoining neighbors. The 5 foot length increase applies only to the fi rst nool" o r the 
structure. In fact, we have decreased the size of the second story ti·ont deck, thereby minimizing 
Ihe impact on visual site corridor and light on ~dj oin i llg parcels. The house on the east side of 
the propcl1)' , ... ill have lillie 10 no impact on visual and ligh t as ex ist ing lrees on the property 

IInnm I);:s i ~ " l'~nn'l ~nd Variance 
r"l;11""" rur ·1980 Gamel SIr~~1 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



already block the westerl y visual site corridor and some lighl. The house on the west side of the 
properly will have some impact from the 5 lbot ex pansion, however the house already has no 
view of the site corridor in a easte rly direction because the house is set back approximately 3 feet 
beh ind the tiunt of our ex isting structu re. We appreciate Ihal the requested 5 fee t will have some 
impact their visua l site line from the middle ortbeir driveway. Any expansion in any direction 
would have some impact on neighbors. However, the additional 5 feet will not create a new 
conditi on from the ir house. The house on Ihe west side property does not have u view orlhe site 
corridor now. so we believe the req uested variance will not create an undue burden. 

Thank you for your cons ideration of our request. We arc happy to answer questions or provide 
addit ional information abo ut the proposed project. 

Very trul y yours, 

David & Deb Aaron 

A~r.\l1lk,i~n PerIni! ml<l Vl!l'i~Ih:~ 
fCt!I!!."" h'rWl(1) (illff)':1 SIIQ.'I 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.A.3

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



City of Capitola Planning Department
February 4, 2016 Meeting

Design Permit and Variance request for 4980 Garnet Street
David and Deb Aaron

Photo from Caldarella letter, page 4 (cropped)

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



Before After

, , , , 

~/: , , , , , , , , , 
L 

- -----1 

, , 
: , 
: , 

-" , , , , , , 

--------~---~~---------- --

LIVING AREA 
m? ... 4i 

FC.lsr~~ 2ND FlOOR pi AN 

I 

: , 
: 
i 

'+--= 

1--.... , 
i , , 
I , , 

--------, 
........ _ - ----1 

, 
, 
, 
I , 

, 
I 

i 
I , 
I 

i , , 

'-l_~ 
I ._ 
, 

I , 
, 
, 

~~~~~t-I~ I 

lIVlNGAREA 
812"1' ft 

, 

i ...L-. , .-
, 

i 
, 
, 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



Before After

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



Before After

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



Before After

P
h

o
to

 f
ro

m
 C

al
d

ar
el

la
le

tt
er

, p
ag

e 
5

 

.. .. 
9.A.3

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



P
h

o
to

 f
ro

m
 C

al
d

ar
el

la
le

tt
er

, p
ag

e 
5

Before After

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



Before After

P
h

o
to

 f
ro

m
 C

al
d

ar
el

la
le

tt
er

, p
ag

e 
7

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



Property with a front yard setback less than 15ft

Garnet Street

152547554725
4675

4610 4650 4670 4760 4810

4955
5005

5080

1
0 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



1525 49th Avenue – 3 ft

4610 Garnet Street – 14 ft

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



4650 Garnet Street – 8 ft 

4670 Garnet Street – 8 ft

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



4675 Garnet Street – 12 ft 

4725 Garnet Street – 11 ft 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



4755 Garnet Street – 10 feet 

4760 Garnet Street – 10 ft 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



4810 Garnet Street – 13 ft

4955 Garnet Street – 13 ft 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



5005 Garnet Street – 4 ft 

5080 Garnet Street – 11 ft

~ __________ ~ _____________ w 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it



" 

2/14/2016 

Capitola City Council 
420 Capitola Ave. 
Capitola, CA 95010 

FEB I G 1016 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

RE: Appea l: Capitola Planning Commission Variance 
4980 Garnet Street #15-181 APN:034-043-16 

Dear Capitola City Council, 

This submittal is an appeal of the Capitola Planning Commiss ions decision to grant a 
va riance at 4980 Garnet Street for a garage add ition to extend the garage six feet 
into the required 20-foot front yard setback. We have lived at the 4960 garnet Street 
for over 3D-years and feel this variance would negatively affect the neighborhood. 

• This variance reflects a 30% encroachment of the front yard setback, which 
is unprecedented in the 4900 block of Garnet Street. Currently the homes on 
this block line up visually as a result of the setback ordinance. There are only 
three properties on this block that do not meet the setback requirements and 
they are not comparable properties; 1) sub-standard lot with no garage 2) 
multi-family that has been existing for over 3D-years 3) pre-existing single 
sto ry. 

• The approval of this variance is granting special priviJege as the current lot 
and existing structure do su pport a new garage within the allowable setback 
without the need of a variance. Extending the tirst floor into the rear setback 
will gain the desired six feet of extra depth for the garage and would 
maintain the uniform and setback currently establi shed in the neighborhood. 

• Several of the neighbors within the vicinity are adamantly opposed to the 
variance as it will detract from the uni formity of the neighborhood and set a 
precedent within the neighborhood. We a ll disagree with the Planning 
Commiss ions opinion that bringing the garage to closer to the street will only 
'slightly' modify the character of the neighborhood. 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



We are not opposed to the enclosure of the carport as long as it does not encroach 
upon the established setback The neighborhood can be upgraded without 
impacting the neighbors or the look and feel of the ne ighborhood. As with any major 
remodel there are always trade-offs to be made, limitations to accept, and codes and 
regulations to adhere to. I'm sure that the property owners were never 100% 
certa in that a variance would be granted, and so other building plans and budgets 
would have to have been a consideration and a reality. 

Thanking you in advance, 

Jan and Rick Caldarella 
4960 Garnet Street 

{my 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



Go gle Maps 4980 Garnet St 

Ima!le!)' C2016 Google, Map data C2016 Google 20 ft 

WY1l(E.Nl ~U&..l'-lf'{\t::501 a:c:: ~VvS~.6 i.-.l 
:1:('('\~AG\l2j;> l¥Z..t=ip-': 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



? .... '?- 1- f:1 ~\?T' I'X-, / '/iSu.DW 1? eNOZllACl.,/n0\Jl 

GACLNE\ ~ . 

S-C:>IO 

1 

GARNET STREET 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



Safty, Ryan (rsafty@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Follow Up Flag: 
Flag Status: 

Hello Ryan, 

Tom Evans <tcevans@sbcglobal.net> 
Friday, April 01, 201612:34 PM 
Safty, Ryan (rsafty@cLcapitola.ca.us) 
4980 Garnet Appeal Letter 

Follow up 
Flagged 

I am writing to ask you to remove my signature from the 4980 Garnet Appeal Letter. 

Upon reviewing the plans and understanding the project I now support it. 

As discussed, I am planning a 2nd story deck for my home at 5005 Garnet which would require a 
front yard setback variance, but would be comparable to other homes in the neighborhood & maintain 
a reasonable setback from the back of curb considering the unused right-of-way. 

Thanks you & best regards, 

Thomas Evans 
5005 Garnet St 

1 

9.A.3

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l A

g
en

d
a 

P
ac

ke
t 

an
d

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 4

-1
4-

16
  (

14
38

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Community Choice Energy Status Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and authorize the City Manager to designate 
staff to participate in the upcoming special study sessions and ad-hoc subcommittee 
deliberations.

BACKGROUND: Community Choice Energy (CCE) programs allow local governments to 
purchase electricity and invest in energy projects, while also establishing programs that can 
benefit local residents and businesses. Energy transmission, distribution, repair, and customer 
service would remain the responsibility of the utility provider, Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E).

On January 10, 2013, the City Council authorized the City’s participation in an investigation of 
the technical and financial feasibility of establishing a regional, tri-county CCE program. Over 
the following three years, City staff participated in the Monterey Bay Community Power (MBCP) 
Project Development Advisory Committee (PDAC) which is comprised of representatives from 
15 of the Monterey Bay region’s 21 local governments participating in the feasibility study. The 
PDAC has hosted 26 public meetings to provide guidance and make key decisions on the scope 
of the feasibility study.

On October 22, 2015, the City Council adopted a Climate Action Plan (CAP) which included a 
number of actions to reduce the City’s production of greenhouse gas emissions. The adopted 
CAP identifies establishment of a regional CCE program as one of the single most effective 
measures available to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

DISCUSSION: A feasibility study has been completed which concluded that a CCE program is 
technically and financially viable for the Monterey Bay region. The study found a regional CCE 
could provide electricity at general rate parity with PG&E while increasing renewable energy 
generation, decreasing greenhouse gas emissions, and providing economic benefits to the 
region. An independent peer review has also been completed which concurred with the findings 
and conclusions of the feasibility study. The feasibility study, peer review, and other project 
documents can be reviewed on the Monterey Bay CCE website at www.montereybaycca.org.

The successes of existing CCE programs in California and positive findings of the feasibility 
study indicate that establishing a successful CCE agency in the Monterey Bay Region is 
feasible and worthy of further consideration. Accordingly, the PDAC adopted the following 
feasibility recommendation at its April 14, 2016 meeting:

PDAC Feasibility Recommendation

The prospects for CCE programs in California have improved significantly in recent years as a 
result of many factors:

9.B

Packet Pg. 134

http://www.montereybaycca.org
http://www.montereybaycca.org
http://www.montereybaycca.org


Community Choice Energy Status Report 
April 28, 2016

 The success of Marin Clean Energy, Sonoma Clean Power, and the City of Lancaster in 
providing their communities with greener power at prices competitive with PG&E while 
investing considerable surplus funds into local renewable energy and energy efficient 
projects while creating local jobs;

 Favorable wholesale energy market condition, resulting in relatively low cost power;

 Recognition that a CCE program can be self-supporting for meeting climate action plan 
objectives and other local public policy goals;

 The reduced market costs of renewable power and improvements in renewable 
technologies; and

 The development of expertise, best practices, and an expanded vendor base to serve CCE 
programs.

Next Steps

Over the coming months, the PDAC will host a series of public workshops and special study 
sessions for the Monterey Bay Community Power county and city partners and CCE experts 
from around the State. The PDAC has also formed two subcommittees that will meet to discuss 
governance, executive staff recruitment, start-up financing options and program formation. Key 
project activities over the next six months include:

 May 24 and June 9, 2016: The PDAC will host three special public study sessions for county 
and city elected officials and executive staff to review and discuss the technical study as 
well as options regarding governance, start-up financing, executive staff recruitment and 
program formation:

o May 24, 9:30 a.m. – noon: Monterey County Board Chambers, Salinas

o June 9, 9:30 a.m. – noon: Santa Cruz County Board Chambers, Santa Cruz

o June 9, 3:00 p.m. – 5:30 p.m.: San Benito County Board Chambers, Hollister

 Counties and cities interested in forming a regional CCE Joint Powers Authority (JPA) may 
join an ad-hoc subcommittee comprised of executive staff that will develop a formation 
proposal for the Boards of Supervisors and City Councils’ respective consideration on or 
before September 15, 2016 (target date). This work will be assisted by professionals who 
have experience in retail electricity services, program design, finance, wholesale 
purchasing, renewable resource development, and legal considerations.

 May through October: A comprehensive regional outreach and communications program to 
engage and educate the community at large will be implemented by a professional 
consulting firm.

 August through October: County and City governing Boards consider the ad-hoc 
subcommittee formation proposal and adopt ordinances and agreements with other early 
adoptive partners to finalize the initial CCE-Joint Powers Agreement (JPA).   

 October 31, 2016: A regional CCE-JPA governing Board is seated and a final selection for 
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is made. The CEO then hires staff and Phase Two 
begins.

Phase Two Formation Work

9.B

Packet Pg. 135



Community Choice Energy Status Report 
April 28, 2016

This phase involves program design, procuring energy, seeking California Public Utility 
Commission approval, executing a service agreement with PG&E, and expanded community 
engagement. Agency staff will also complete all remaining legal requirements, enroll customers 
and prepare to launch an independent operation. The end result of Phase Two work will to 
provide power to customers no later than September/October 2017. All start-up costs are 
reimbursable, with interest, through ratepayer revenues after program initiation.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

Report Prepared By:  Rich Grunow
Community Development Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

9.B

Packet Pg. 136



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2016

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution for Widening Kennedy Drive to Allow Four Hour Parking 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Public Works Department to issue an encroachment 
permit for shoulder widening on Kennedy Drive and approve a Resolution designating on-street 
parking as four-hour parking along Kennedy Drive between Chittenden Lane and Rosedale 
Avenue.

BACKGROUND: The City has received a request from a business owner at 103-105 Kennedy 
Drive to widen 310 feet of Kennedy Drive to provide four hour on-street public parking. The 
request from Sante Adairius Rustic Ales (brewery), included as Attachment 1, is in response to 
parking problems that have resulted along Kennedy Drive due to the success of the business. 
Currently customers are parking along the small shoulder of the north side of Kennedy Drive 
and blocking the vehicle travel lane. The Police Department has issued citations in the past and 
has requested to have Public Works install No Parking signs along the roadway.

DISCUSSION: Prior to installing the No Parking signs, City staff inspected the site and 
contacted the owners of the brewery to determine if they would be interested in creating the on 
street parking. The widening plan included as Attachment 2 prepared by Earthworks Paving, 
who are located at 310 Kennedy Drive, shows the proposed widening of Kennedy Drive in two 
sections along the northern side. The widened street will provide an 8 foot shoulder parking 
area and two 12 foot travel lanes. The two widened areas are 170 feet long and 136 feet long 
which will accommodate 16 new spaces. The portion of street between the two widened areas, 
and the remaining length of Kennedy Drive, will be posted as No Parking.

The request from the business includes designating this new parking as four hour parking to 
prevent the storage of vehicles in the new spaces. This designation in a commercial/industrial 
zone would be consistent with parking restrictions established in other commercial zoned areas 
such as 41st Avenue. A draft Resolution has been prepared making the four hour parking limit 
designation.

A notice of this hearing has been sent to all surrounding properties within 300 feet of this area.

FISCAL IMPACT: Upon approval, Public Works will issue an encroachment permit for $840 to 
Earthworks Paving for the project. The applicant will pay all costs to widen Kennedy Drive. The 
City will bear the cost of installing the No Parking and Four Hour Parking signs.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Letter from Sante Adairius Rustic Ales (PDF)
2. Kennedy Drive Proposed Parking Plan (PDF)

9.C

Packet Pg. 137



Kennedy Drive Widening 
April 28, 2016

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

……

9.C

Packet Pg. 138



Kennedy Drive Widening 
April 28, 2016

DRAFT RESOLUTION ____

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA
ESTABLISHING A FOUR HOUR PARKING ZONE

ON THE NORTH SIDE KENNEDY DRIVE

WHEREAS, businesses at 103-105 Kennedy Drive have had on-going parking problems 
and customers have been parking illegally along the north side of Kennedy Drive; and.

WHEREAS, the Police Department has issued parking citations in the past to vehicles 
parking along Kennedy Drive and have reported the problem to the Public Works Department 
and requested the installation of No Parking signs, and

WHEREAS, the business owner at 103-105 Kennedy Drive has proposed to pay for the 
widening of two sections of Kennedy Drive between Chittenden Lane and Rosedale Avenue to 
create two areas of legal on street parking with 16 new public parking spaces, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.36.290 the City Council 
may, by Resolution, limit the period of time in which a vehicle may be parked within a 
designated area, and

WHEREAS, the establishment of a four hour parking zone will limit the storage and long 
term parking in the new spaces while still providing the surrounding commercial properties 
parking they need for their customers, and

WHEREAS, all portions of Kennedy Drive, except the designated four hour parking 
areas will be posted No Parking, and

WHEREAS, the designated four hour parking zone will further be restricted to allow No 
Parking from midnight to five in the morning every day.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola that a four hour parking zone be established for on-street parking along Kennedy Drive 
between Chittenden Lane and Rosedale Avenue. Said restrictions will include No Parking from 
midnight to five in the morning every day.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 28th day of April 
2016, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Ed Bottorff, Mayor
ATTEST:

______________________, CMC
 Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

9.C

Packet Pg. 139



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

et
te

r 
fr

o
m

 S
an

te
 A

d
ai

ri
u

s 
R

u
st

ic
 A

le
s 

 (
14

24
 :

 K
en

n
ed

y 
D

ri
ve

 W
id

en
in

g
)



9.C.1

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

et
te

r 
fr

o
m

 S
an

te
 A

d
ai

ri
u

s 
R

u
st

ic
 A

le
s 

 (
14

24
 :

 K
en

n
ed

y 
D

ri
ve

 W
id

en
in

g
)



l
[

(S
)

7

ll

?,,,,2

(l?1!}l.U:i
l

(m

-m
c
>

Ji! !
((Q

(S
'&

C
H

?
T

T
E

N
?
)E

N
P

W

/

/
J
l

%
s
.>

I
l

b
',

'
0

? -n?'
?
c

:
 
L

a
7
'

c
l-
tll

%

W

s
r
'i 

'-
'=

' 
Q

H
 z

, 'E
>L
L

I
"
(
j

?
 '?

C
L

e
;
e
<

0
C

<

oL
u

a
'-

C
L

L
L

ogo

ll
$

ji

ll

I1.l

My

/

'
r

ll
d

n
':'S

-d
%

O
1

-aa7 ; 0
€

<

'-L.)

,Q?('n

nJl

?l

(
'

/
'

S
/)

3
u
?

':)

,g-
k4)
L
)

n

'1%l!Ni!Wlvl'.i

ar?
!*n%

I

ll{

-m$
W

lllllIl

.
f

,J0
L'2

l-b
?

i
?

 
j
 
?

:
t
>

"
)

', (7 i C
G

 li
I

ll

(
'

?

Y%'b
%

'%

R
o

s
e

: D
ri t e

/4
-v[

j,,).

fflll
ll

l /,/
Jth

Ca(5
'
*/

T
'U

'
0er

4
)h N
$
J

-
k
-

Q€

Q
..

es

9.C
.2

P
acket P

g
. 142

Attachment: Kennedy Drive Proposed Parking Plan  (1424 : Kennedy Drive Widening)


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	EXISTING LITIGATION
	PENDING LITIGATION

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	7. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS
	8. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. Draft April 14, 2016, City Council Minutes

	B. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. City Check Register 03/04/2016
	2. Cith Check Register 03/11/2016
	3. City Check Register 03/18/2016
	4. City Check Register 03/25/2016

	C. Monterey Avenue Skate Park - Set Hearing
	Printout: Monterey Avenue Skate Park - Set Hearing
	1. Skate Park Appeal - Richard Lippi
	2. Skate Park Appeal - Wittwer Parkin LLP

	D. Amendment to Mid Management MOU
	Printout: Amendment to Mid Management MOU
	1. Amendment to the Mid-Management Employees MOU

	E. CalRecycle Grant Resolution
	Printout: CalRecycle Grant Resolution

	F. Amend 2015-2016 Budget to Purchase Electric Vehicle
	Printout: Amend 2015-2016 Budget to Purchase Electric Vehicle
	1. GEM Quote
	2. Toyota Quote
	3. Budget Amendment


	9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. 4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal
	Printout: 4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal
	1. Revised Project Plans 4-19-16
	2. Draft City Council Minutes 4-14-16
	3. City Council Agenda Packet and Staff Report 4-14-16

	B. Community Choice Energy Status Report
	Printout: Community Choice Energy Status Report

	C. Kennedy Drive Widening
	Printout: Kennedy Drive Widening
	1. Letter from Sante Adairius Rustic Ales
	2. Kennedy Drive Proposed Parking Plan


	10. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	8.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	8.A.1 · Draft April 14, 2016, City Council Minutes

	8.B · Approval of City Check Registers
	8.B.1 · City Check Register 03/04/2016
	8.B.2 · Cith Check Register 03/11/2016
	8.B.3 · City Check Register 03/18/2016
	8.B.4 · City Check Register 03/25/2016

	8.C · Monterey Avenue Skate Park - Set Hearing
	8.C.1 · Skate Park Appeal - Richard Lippi
	8.C.2 · Skate Park Appeal - Wittwer Parkin LLP

	8.D · Amendment to Mid Management MOU
	8.D.1 · Amendment to the Mid-Management Employees MOU

	8.E · CalRecycle Grant Resolution
	8.F · Amend 2015-2016 Budget to Purchase Electric Vehicle
	8.F.1 · GEM Quote
	8.F.2 · Toyota Quote
	8.F.3 · Budget Amendment

	9.A · 4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal
	9.A.1 · Revised Project Plans 4-19-16
	9.A.2 · Draft City Council Minutes 4-14-16
	9.A.3 · City Council Agenda Packet and Staff Report 4-14-16

	9.B · Community Choice Energy Status Report
	9.C · Kennedy Drive Widening
	9.C.1 · Letter from Sante Adairius Rustic Ales
	9.C.2 · Kennedy Drive Proposed Parking Plan



